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The Department of Chemistry’s flagship teaching and research building opened in September 2014

Chair’s foreword

W

e have enjoyed a further successful
academic and financial year at the
University with record numbers
of students joining us and a record
financial surplus. We also welcomed our new
Vice-Chancellor, Professor Koen Lamberts, in
January 2014 to provide renewed leadership for
the future.
It is now appropriate to develop a new
strategy for the University. We have completed
a major expansion phase over the last ten
years and now seek to meet the challenges of
new student entry rules and funding, and the
tighter research funding climate. The wider
University community has engaged energetically
in consulting on the initial drafts, and the
Vice‑Chancellor, his senior colleagues and the

University Council will finalise the strategic
directions during this coming year. It is clear
that excellence in teaching and research will
remain at the heart of the University’s forward
direction, but we expect new initiatives to be
part of the plan.
I would like to express, on behalf of my
Council colleagues, our pleasure and thanks to
all our academic and support staff who have
dealt admirably with the pace of change affecting
the University, particularly in relation to the
increased undergraduate student intake and,
simultaneously, the final stages of the Research
Excellence Framework submission. Challenging
times are likely to continue, but I would like
them all to know that their efforts on behalf
of the University are sincerely appreciated.
Sir Christopher O’Donnell
Chair of Council
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Introduction

A

s I approach the first anniversary of
my arrival at the University of York,
my sincere thanks are due to my
predecessor, Professor Brian Cantor,
and Dr Jane Grenville, who was Acting
Vice-Chancellor at the end of 2013. Their
stewardship has helped to ensure York’s position
as a leading research-intensive university.
The University has had another successful
year. Among many highlights, I would mention
Biology’s Centre for Novel Agricultural Products,
led by Professor Simon McQueen-Mason,
winning 50 per cent of the available ‘Longer
and Larger’ BBSRC grants in this area, totalling
£10m, for projects in both agriculture and
the search for alternatives to fossil fuels.
A collaboration between the Universities of
York, Leeds and Sheffield, led by Professor Mark
Ormrod, received a £19m award from the Arts
and Humanities Research Council to create the
White Rose College of the Arts and Humanities.
There was also success for the Centre for
Reviews and Dissemination, which has been
awarded more than £6m this year, including
a £5.25m grant with the Centre for Health
Economics to act as one of the National Institute
for Health Research centres of excellence for
health technology assessment, confirming
York’s strong reputation in evidence-informed
decision-making.

One of our most significant scientific
breakthroughs came this year with the discovery
by Professor Gideon Davies and Professor Paul
Walton of a new family of enzymes, which
allows breakdown of materials such as plant
stems, wood chips and cardboard waste, as well
as other tricky polysaccharides. This process
in turn allows fermentation to bioethanol,
and thence to second-generation biofuel
development. Groundbreaking research and
industrial collaboration in this area is driving
the University’s growing reputation as a world
leader in biorenewables and agricultural
technology research.
The University’s strong performance has
provided the background for the development
of a new University Strategy, which has been the
focus of attention in recent months. Universities
have to work in a complex and unpredictable
context; recent changes have had a profound
impact on how English universities are funded,
on how they are regulated, and on how they
work with different partners and stakeholders.
The University’s response to these changes will
be critical to its future. We will remain focused on
excellence as the key to our success, particularly
in our core mission of teaching and research.
We are in a good position to thrive and
I look forward to seeing York achieve even
greater success.
Professor Koen Lamberts
Vice-Chancellor
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The University’s year
This academic and financial year culminated with the final celebrations of the University’s
50th Anniversary, a chance to reflect on strong academic success and international recognition
for excellent teaching and research. Closing the chapter on this promising first half-century,
the University is now seizing the opportunity to refresh strategy and focus on its core business
of research and teaching of the highest quality.

T

he year 2013/14 saw submission of
the University’s contribution to the
Research Excellence Framework
(REF– the assessment of the
quality of the University’s research),
including for the first time, measures of
‘impact’. This milestone, towards the end
of 2013, coincided with the retirement
of Professor Brian Cantor after 11 years
as Vice-Chancellor. The new calendar
year began with a new Vice-Chancellor,
Professor Koen Lamberts, and the launch
of consultations on University Strategy
and a new Research Strategy – the latter
led by York’s new Pro-Vice-Chancellor
for Research, Professor Deborah Smith.
York is a research-intensive university,
with a growing international reputation
in many areas across the academic
disciplines. Our research informs our
teaching, benefiting the high-quality
students we recruit from around the
world, and our research partnerships are
supporting enhanced growth externally.
As a member of the Russell Group, our aim
is to be academically excellent, first and
foremost. Increased research income this
year, coupled with research highlights
across the institution, has reinforced
our strength in this area.
Major scientific breakthroughs during
the year have addressed some of the
most important global issues of our time:
climate change, lack of water supply,
fuel poverty, the state of our oceans
and the depletion of the ozone layer.
The University has established itself
as an international leader in industrial
biotechnology and bioenergy, playing a
major role in three networks funded by
the Biotechnology and Biological Sciences
Research Council (BBSRC) and designed
to boost interactions between academia
and industry.
Colleagues in Biology’s Centre for Novel
Agricultural Products (Director, Professor
Simon McQueen-Mason) have won 50 per
cent of the available ‘Longer and Larger’
BBSRC grants in this area, totalling £10m,
for projects relevant to agriculture and
the search for alternatives to fossil fuels.
Work to find such alternatives took a

leap forward this year with a significant
discovery in Chemistry. Professor Gideon
Davies and Professor Paul Walton have
identified a new family of enzymes that
break down all types of bio-matter,
facilitating fermentation to bioethanol and
second-generation biofuel development.
Innovative research and international
expertise of this type will underpin York’s
BioVale initiative, providing an agri-tech
platform to support work with industrial
and other partners, putting the University
and the region on the map for global
energy, crop and environmental expertise.
York has also attracted multi-million
pound funding for science doctoral
training programmes from the Research
Councils (EPSRC, NERC, BBSRC) to
establish new opportunities in computer
gaming, plasma and fusion research, and
environmental and biological sciences,
while an innovative €3.5m award from
the European Union will train early career
researchers in new technologies to tackle
urban pollution around the globe.
Our science departments have once
more excelled in winning Athena SWAN
awards: having been the first University
to win a gold award, we now hold two,
for Biology and Chemistry. In addition,
we have the rare accolade of having all
our science departments now accredited
in this visionary and practical scheme,
which advocates for women’s careers in
science and leads to fairer practice in the
science workplace for everyone.
Meanwhile, junior colleagues in our
Social Science departments are making
the headlines: Dr Charlotte O’Brien (Law)
and Dr Liam Clegg (Politics) have both
won prestigious early career awards.
Dr O’Brien won an Economic and Social
Research Council Future Research Leader
Award for work on EU law in practice
and Dr Clegg won a 2013 Scopus Young
Researcher Award for work on the
changing roles of the World Bank and
International Monetary Fund.
In the Arts and Humanities, a
collaboration led by York academic,
Professor Mark Ormrod, between the
Universities of York, Leeds and Sheffield

received a £19m award from the Arts and
Humanities Research Council (AHRC) to
create the White Rose College of the Arts
and Humanities. This will recruit and
train more than 300 fully-funded doctoral
students over five years. The funding is
designed to foster a more collaborative
approach to doctoral training. The
College will work closely with leading
external organisations from the creative
arts, media and heritage sectors to equip
high‑achieving individuals with the skills
and experience to become leaders in their
chosen fields.
Also in the Humanities, two of our art
historians have led on work for national
exhibitions: ‘Mondrian and his Studios’
at Tate Liverpool was curated by Professor
Michael White, while Dr Amanda Lillie
curated the National Gallery’s ‘Building
the Picture: Architecture in Italian
Renaissance Painting’. Another major
project, run by Tim Ayers and Dr John
Cooper, is analysing the 800-year visual
and political culture of St Stephen’s Chapel
in the Palace of Westminster, supported by
a major AHRC grant of nearly £1m.
The student recruitment landscape
continues to provide challenges not only
for York but for UK Higher Education
more widely. For UK and EU students,
the introduction of higher tuition fees
for home undergraduates has not had the
seismic effect some predicted. However,
Higher Education funding remains
the subject of political interest and the
impact of other changes in the education
system have yet to be understood. For
example, we may see changes in GCSE
and A level subject choices affecting the
distribution of demand between different
subjects in coming years. At postgraduate
level, recruitment to taught Masters
programmes has remained strong, but
funding opportunities for postgraduates
are restricted and an upturn in the
economy could increase the job choices
for students leaving undergraduate
programmes. It is encouraging to see
Government recognition of this trend
with a diversion of some funding into
support for postgraduate students.
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Hugh Masekela, the South African jazz flugelhornist, was
one of the distinguished figures awarded an honorary
doctorate at the graduation ceremonies in July 2014

With potential for growth within the
UK restricted by the declining schoolleaving age population, recruitment
beyond the UK also remains highly
competitive. York continues to draw in
excellent students both from countries
with whom we have a longstanding
relationship and from a new group
of countries where we are actively
developing our reputation. The UK
remains a popular study destination
for international students despite a
tightening of visa rules.
In response to these challenges, the
University works tirelessly to ensure we
appeal to as many excellent undergraduate
and postgraduate students as possible.
Students are keen to know as much as
possible about the university to which
they apply. We have continued to develop
our Open Days and our online information
to support prospective students through
the process of considering where to apply,
receiving an offer and getting their exam
results. We continue to work hard to
ensure the very best students can come
to York, regardless of their background.
We recognise that coming to university is
about more than just obtaining a degree:
it is a time to try new things, from sport
to international study, from internships
to running a student society. Our aim is
to make our students’ time at York rich
in content and opportunity.
York’s public engagement included the
Festival of Ideas, this year focusing on the
theme of Order and Chaos, with speakers
including Gavin Esler, Jung Chang and
Eva Schloss. The Festival forms one of
many ways in which we take our work
and expertise to the public. This important
area of work includes school visits,
professional networks, lifelong learning
courses, public lectures and concerts,
and a direct and rewarding commitment
to the city of York. We are fortunate
to be part of an historic city with its
burgeoning economy focused on science
and innovation, where, in 2014, it was
possible to find everything from Roman
remains to the Tour de France.

University key facts
• Total students: 16,469 (15,330 FTE)
• Total staff: 3,790 (FTE)
• Total academic and research staff: 1,580, including 30% from overseas
•	1,329 research students, including over 520 international research students
from 70 countries
• 44% of all postgraduates are overseas students
• Total income: £305m
• Total research income: £55.1m
•	89% of students satisfied with the quality of teaching, 92% say staff
are good at explaining things, 91% say staff are enthusiastic about their
teaching (National Student Survey 2014)
•	15% increase in student satisfaction with library facilities between 2011
and 2014 (National Student Survey)
•	In the top ten institutions for projected PhD completion (HEFCE)
•	In the last five years, the University has collaborated with over 700
individual partner universities, research institutions and companies in
EU‑funded research, across 33 European countries
•	The University currently has 100 Erasmus agreements for staff and student
exchange in Europe, 20 worldwide exchange partners and 9 worldwide
departmental exchanges

4
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Strategic and operating review
The University has made good progress this year in an increasingly uncertain environment.
Looking forward, a new University Strategy will reaffirm commitment to internationally
recognised research and academic excellence.
Strategic background
Despite the uncertainties highlighted
in last year’s report, 2013/14 has been
a year of steady progress. Turnover,
surplus and cash flow targets have all
been beaten, student numbers, both
from home and overseas, have risen and
research income has continued to recover.
Capital expenditure has been strong and
has profited from the receipt of a number
of grants not anticipated at the start of
the year.
The growth in turnover, net income
and cash flow continued to benefit
from the change in the sector’s funding
arrangements. This process reaches
steady state in 2016/17.

ABB. Retrospective clawback of part of
the remaining Higher Education Funding
Council for England (HEFCE) grant has
also been applied.
As noted last year, such decisions
have the potential to disrupt institutional
physical and financial planning while
also introducing an unhelpful element
of game-playing into the student
recruitment process. Generally York has
managed well: its home undergraduate
numbers have continued to increase and
indications are that the University’s share
of the best performing A level students
continues to hold up well.
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Operating cash flow: cash generation continues to improve

Over the whole transition period,
the University has seen its operating
margin improve, but this is offset by a
corresponding reduction in capital grants
and erosion in the real value of the tuition
fees. Cash flow has improved strongly
and now more than compensates for
the withdrawal of capital grants. The
increasing importance of tuition fees
has, however, substantially increased
the University’s dependence on this
source of income, making it more
sensitive to year-on-year shifts in
demand from home and from overseas
students and in Government policy.
Though the new tuition fee regime
has been generally beneficial, the
transition has been complicated by the
Government’s attempts to contain the
cost of the new arrangements. Fines have
been levied on institutions that have
over-recruited students with A level
grades below AAB initially and then below

The University has nevertheless seen
a retrospective reduction in its grant from
HEFCE and this may well be repeated next
year, though at a lower level.
For this reason, if for no other,
the University has welcomed the
Government’s promise to remove any
controls on recruitment for the academic
year 2015/16. The recruitment process will
nonetheless remain intensely problematic
and there is a risk that loosening controls
will intensify competition for the best
students, perversely encouraging growth
strategies in a market where the number
of such students is static. As noted last
year, setting and hitting targets will
continue to depend on excellent staff
backed up by first-class information
systems and market intelligence.
Sustaining progress in these areas is and
will remain a priority for the University.
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Income: overall income continues to increase steadily

Strategy
Much of the University’s recent history
has been dominated by growth, but the
changes in the environment for Higher
Education mean that the University
cannot assume that what has worked
well thus far will continue to sustain
success into the future. Accordingly, the
Vice‑Chancellor has initiated a process
that will, over the next few months,
lead to a new University Strategy. This
will reaffirm the University’s absolute
commitment to internationally recognised
research and to the principle that teaching
should continue to be informed by the
outcomes of research.
The research strategy itself will have
strong thematic elements and will build
on areas of key strength including the
University’s tradition of inter-disciplinary
collaboration.
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Research income: receipts are improving after the
dip in 2012

The new teaching strategy will
emphasise the development of a
distinctive pedagogy. Designed to enable
students to get the best from their time
at York, this will help the University and
its departments to continue to attract
the best students in an increasingly
competitive environment.
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The financial strategy will remain
focused on delivering the funds for the
renewal of the University’s legacy estate,
while also providing for additional capital
and recurrent spend on research. The
ultimate aim is a campus environment
and research facilities of which we
can be proud and which are capable of
sustaining our competitiveness while
ensuring a prudent degree of cover to
cope with uncertainty.
Over the next four years alone,
the University plans to spend around
£115m on capital projects and this
level of spend will continue at least for
a similar period beyond 2017/18. The
bulk of spend is planned for the renewal
of buildings and infrastructure on the
Heslington West site but excludes any
spend on residential capacity, all of which
will be funded through third-party
investment including joint ventures.
The financial strategy envisages that
the majority of the funds required will
be generated by existing or planned
operations and operating cash flow is
projected to reach 10% of turnover by
the end of the current planning period.
Further borrowing may be considered but
will be dependent on the robustness of the
University’s income streams and on the
development of the funding environment
as a whole.

Risk and uncertainty
The University recognises two main
sources of risk, operational and strategic.
Operational risk centres on threats to
the University’s ability to secure, deploy
and manage its resources so as to deliver
excellent teaching and research in a
financially sustainable manner. Strategic
risk focuses on the potential for mismatch
between the University’s existing business
model, essentially how it plans to earn
and use its resources, and the commercial,
economic and political realities of the
world in which it operates.
The corresponding challenges highlight
the importance of the University’s ability
to sense and understand the potential
impact of external change and then to
adapt effectively. As was noted last year,
these challenges are far from trivial and
are now being compounded by continuing
political and economic uncertainties.
That said, the University continues
to develop its capacity to manage and
mitigate risk – a process that will be
strengthened by the strategic review
process as it gives focused attention to the
effectiveness of the University’s internal
structures. Any changes will enhance the
capacity to develop strong and timely
responses to market change and improve
the speed and flexibility with which

resources can be deployed.
The University’s financial plans
continue to hold contingency sums both
to cope with short-term fluctuations
in income and to provide capacity to
respond to opportunity or to deal with
emergent threats.
The University also makes specific
provision against adverse movements in
the cost of borrowing. This reflects the
University’s comparatively high levels
of debt and currently consists of a mix
of interest rate swaps and the use of
fixed interest debt. These arrangements
provide protection against potentially
unaffordable increases in interest rates
and have served to contain borrowing
costs in the short term by allowing the
University to carry a prudent proportion
of variable rate debt.
Universities also continue to be
faced by a number of specific risks and
uncertainties. Last year we noted issues
relating to pension arrangements, the
outcome of the Research Excellence
Framework (REF) review and the
Government’s efforts to contain the
cost of the new fee regime.
The University’s REF performance
will be known at the end of 2014 but
the financial implications will not
become apparent until the financial
year 2015/16. We remain optimistic
about our performance and have been
encouraged by the strong recent successes
of key departments such as Biology and
Chemistry. However, it is unlikely that
the real value of the overall funding will
be increased.
Pensions remain a potential problem,
particularly as USS scheme deficits will
come on the balance sheet from 2016/17.
It is therefore encouraging that changes
to benefits as well as to contribution

5

rates are now being proposed as a
way of tackling both the past service
deficit and the cost of future provision.
Employment costs will inevitably increase
through the dual impact of these changes
and the Government’s decision to
standardise State pensions. Universities
should, however, be spared any need to
provide for one-off deficit payments.
The future funding of fees remains
problematic, particularly as the
Government refines its estimates of the
yield from loan recovery arrangements.
Fees will continue to erode in real terms
until the general election at least and
thereafter there is a threat that the system
could be radically redesigned by any
incoming Labour administration. Such
uncertainty is unhelpful and any change
that inhibited universities’ new-found
freedom to plan, borrow and invest for the
longer term could be catastrophic for the
sector and the economy as a whole.

Conclusion
The new fee regime has brought
fresh competitive challenges while
strengthening the University’s capacity
to plan and invest for the longer term.
The University has been quick to exploit
its new freedoms and should benefit
further by improving its capacity to
manage as well as to benefit from change.
A newly evolving strategy will help to
optimise the exploitation and deployment
of the University’s resources and speed
the replacement of its legacy assets.
Environmental uncertainty, however,
continues to hamper decision‑making
and the University will need to
deploy and maximise all its skills and
capabilities to sustain its pre-eminence
as an institution committed to excellent
research and teaching.
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Key performance indicators
Financial indicators
KPI O
 perating surplus as a
percentage of income
Year

Operating surplus

2013/14

7.4%

2012/13

6.0%

2011/12

6.7%

2010/11

6.3%

2009/10

7.0%

KPI Return on capital employed (ROCE)
Year

ROCE

2013/14

9.3%

2012/13

7.4%

2011/12

7.5%

2010/11

6.9%

2009/10

7.8%

KPI Gearing ratio
Year

Gearing ratio

2013/14

32.4%

2012/13

33.8%

2011/12

35.1%

2010/11

29.9%

2009/10

28.4%

KPI A
 nnualised servicing cost
as a percentage of income
Year

ASC

2013/14

3.9%

2012/13

4.1%

2011/12

4.4%

2010/11

3.8%

2009/10

3.3%

Description

Comment on performance

Operating surplus comprises earnings
before interest payable, taxation,
depreciation, capital grant amortisation,
investment and endowment income,
surpluses on disposal of fixed assets,
and exceptional items of income
and expenditure.

The 2013/14 percentage has improved
significantly on 2012/13.

Description

Comment on performance

ROCE is a measure of efficiency in
the deployment of the University’s
assets. Return is defined as operating
surplus as a proportion of net assets
(excluding pension liability).

Return on capital employed is
being maintained.

Description

Comment on performance

The gearing ratio measures the
University’s dependence on borrowed
money for funding its activities.
The calculation is based on net debt,
divided by the sum of net debt and net
assets (excluding pension liability).

Gearing has declined, due to increases
in cash and short-term investments.

Description

Comment on performance

The annualised servicing cost (ASC) of the
financial commitments consists of total
expected net cash payments (capital and
interest) over the period of the loan,
divided by the loan period. This includes
lump sums at the end of the term and also
takes account of the interest rate swaps
that the University has in place.

The ASC is falling, due to income
increasing while debt service costs
are relatively static.
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Research indicator
Comment on performance

KPI Research income
Year

Research income

2013/14

£55.1m

2012/13

£49.8m

2011/12

£46.0m

2010/11

£51.2m

2009/10

£57.6m

Research income has grown by more
than 10% in the year 2013/14.

Internationalisation indicator
Comment on performance

KPI Student numbers from outside the UK as % of total number of students
Year

% of full-time equivalent student numbers

2013/14

24.5%

2012/13

23.8%

2011/12

22.4%

2010/11

22.0%

2009/10

21.0%

The proportion of international students
within the University population
continues to increase.

Source: 1 December student number snapshot from the University of York Student Records System

Teaching and learning indicators
Comment on performance

KPI Overall completion rate on undergraduate programmes
Year

% successfully completing

2012/13

90.0%

2011/12

90.8%

2010/11

90.6%

2009/10

90.4%

2008/09

90.6%

The proportion of 2012/13 entrants
projected to complete degree programmes
remains high. We remain above our
HEFCE benchmark of 89.1%.
2013/14 figures will be published by the
Higher Education Statistics Agency in 2015

Source: HESA Performance Indicators (Table 5)

KPI NSS percentage satisfaction rating of each quality dimension at institution level
% of respondents satisfied
Year

The teaching on
my course

Assessment and
feedback

Academic
support

Organisation and
management

Learning
resources

Personal
development

Overall, I am
satisfied with
the quality of
the course

2014

89%

68%

83%

81%

89%

82%

86%

2013

90%

70%

85%

82%

88%

83%

89%

2012

90%

71%

83%

85%

87%

82%

88%

2011

89%

68%

81%

83%

80%

80%

87%

2010

89%

69%

81%

83%

79%

80%

86%

Source: Ipsos-MORI National Student Survey Statistics (Teaching institution data)

Comment
Following an incremental rise in recent years, the proportions of undergraduate student satisfaction in each dimension
other than learning resources have dropped and broadly returned to 2010 levels.
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Diversity indicators
Comment on performance

KPI % of students from widening participation target populations
Year

From state school
or college

From NS-SEC
Classes 4, 5, 6 and 7

From low
participation
neighbourhoods*
New series

Old series

2012/13

78.1%

20.7%

2011/12

77.3%

18.6%

6.6%
6.5%

2010/11

78.8%

18.1%

6.5%

2009/10

79.1%

19.4%

7.4%

2008/09

79.4%

21.6%

7.2%

The proportions of students from state
schools, NS-SEC classes 4–7 and low
participation neighbourhoods have
increased from the previous year but
remain slightly below the benchmark.
2013/14 figures will be published by the
Higher Education Statistics Agency
in 2015.
*The POLAR3 method is now well established and is

used for the new series; the old series uses the previous
POLAR2 method

Source: HESA Performance Indicators (Table 1a)

KPI % of students (of known ethnicity) from black and minority ethnic groups
Year

Undergraduate
home

Undergraduate
all

Postgraduate
home

Postgraduate
all

2013/14

9.9%

16.1%

11.0%

43.4%

2012/13

9.0%

15.2%

11.9%

40.3%

2011/12

9.1%

14.9%

11.4%

38.4%

2010/11

9.1%

14.6%

11.1%

38.8%

2009/10

8.4%

13.9%

11.0%

36.3%

Source: 1 December student number snapshot from the University of York Student Records System

Comment on performance
On the whole the University continues to
increase or at least maintain the ethnic
diversity of the student population.
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Corporate governance
The University is an independent corporation with charitable status established by Royal
Charter. Its objectives, powers and framework of governance are defined in the Charter and
supporting Statutes. The University is committed to best practice in all aspects of corporate
governance and this statement describes the manner in which it has applied the principles
set out in the Governance Code of Practice as re-issued by the Committee of University Chairs
(CUC) in February 2009.

T

he University’s governing body,
the Council, is responsible for the
administration of the revenue and
property of the University, and, in
accordance with the Charter, has ‘general
control over the University and its affairs,
purposes and functions’. The Council also
has overarching responsibility for the
University’s system of internal control
and for reviewing its effectiveness. Having
adopted the voluntary CUC Governance
Code when it was first issued in November
2004, the Council remains satisfied that
the University’s practices are consistent
with the provisions of the Code. Having
provided a formal response to the
CUC’s consultation in respect of a new
Code, the Council awaits its publication
with interest.
The Council’s annual schedule of
business is closely linked to its Statement
of Primary Responsibilities, which are
formally identified as follows:
• to approve the University’s mission,
strategic vision, long-term business
plans, key performance indicators
(KPIs) and annual budgets;
• to appoint the Vice-Chancellor as the
University’s Chief Executive Officer
and to monitor the Vice-Chancellor’s
performance;
• to ensure systems of control and
accountability, covering finances,
operations, risk assessment, internal
grievances and conflicts of interest;
• to monitor the University’s
performance against key performance
indicators and benchmarks;
• to ensure compliance with the statutes,
ordinances and other provisions
regulating the University and its
governance framework.
In order to fulfil these responsibilities,
the Council meets four times a year with
an additional strategic away-day. It has
several sub-committees, including a
Nominations Committee (Chair: Chair
of Council), a Remuneration Committee
(Chair: Chair of Council), an Audit
Committee (Chair: an independent lay

Experts including Diane Coyle, Bob Swarup, Julia Unwin and Maggie Porteous took part in a panel discussion
on economic growth at the York Festival of Ideas in June 2014

person) and a newly constituted Finance
and Policy Committee (formed from the
merger of the previous Finance Committee
and Policy and Resources Committee;
Chair: the University Treasurer).
All these committees are formally
constituted with terms of reference
and appropriate external membership.
The Nominations Committee considers
nominations for lay member vacancies
on the Council and its sub-committees,
as well as considering nominations for
honorary degrees. The Remuneration
Committee determines the remuneration
of the most senior staff, including the
Vice-Chancellor. The new Finance and
Policy Committee monitors in-year
financial performance against budget and
considers questions of resource allocation,
including capital expenditure priorities.
The Audit Committee, which comprises
lay people not directly concerned with the
financial management of the University,
meets four times each year. At a joint

annual meeting with the Finance and
Policy Committee, it reviews the Annual
Report and Financial Statements. As part
of this process it considers the University’s
response to the external auditors’ annual
management letter. As advised by the
internal audit service, the Committee
also reviews the effectiveness of the
system of internal control, including
risk management, and ensures that
arrangements are in place to promote
value for money. It considers the reports
of the internal auditors, including their
annual report, and discusses these with
University officers, monitoring the
implementation of recommendations.
The Committee makes an annual report
to the Council which is also submitted to
the Higher Education Funding Council for
England (HEFCE) in accordance with its
Financial Memorandum.
The Council is also supported in the
fulfilment of its statutory responsibilities
by several other sub-committees covering
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the areas of equality and diversity,
health and safety, and ethics.
With regard to risk management,
the Council is of the view that there
is an ongoing process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the University's
significant risks; that it has been in place
for the year ended 31 July 2014 and up
to the date of approval of the Annual
Report and Financial Statements; and
that it accords with the internal control
guidance provided by HEFCE. The
Council is assured that the identification
and management of risk is an ongoing
process linked to the achievement of
institutional objectives.
In addition to its receipt of reports from
the Audit Committee, the Council itself
considers the Corporate Risk Register
in summary format, noting that the full
detailed register is routinely considered
and updated by the Senior Management
and Operations Groups. During 2013/14
an updated Risk Management Policy was
approved which includes a definition of
institutional ‘risk appetite’ and clarifies
the arrangements for active departmental
engagement with risk management
(as part of the annual medium-term
planning process).
The Council recognises that the
application of risk management practices
cannot eliminate all risk exposure,
especially during a time of great change
in the HE sector. It is acknowledged that
the introduction of the new funding
framework is creating a more uncertain
environment in which all universities

Council members 2013/14
Sir Christopher O’Donnell Chair
Professor Koen Lamberts Vice-Chancellor
Richard Armitage
Matthew Burton
David Dickson
Mike Galloway
Brian Greenwood
Dr Jane Grenville
Denise Jagger
Maureen Loffill
Jenny McAleese
Bill McCarthy
Professor Colin Mellors
Professor Peter Sells
Professor Lesley Stewart
Kallum Taylor (Students’ Union)
Professor Richard Taylor
Deian Tecwyn
Julia Unwin
Yuan Wang (Graduate Students’ Association)
Lesley Wild

Public benefit statement
The University has had regard to the Charity Commission’s guidance on public
benefit, as required by the HEFCE Financial Memorandum and the Charities Act 2011.
The University provides public benefit principally through the teaching of
undergraduate and postgraduate students and through the advancement of
knowledge by research. The primary beneficiaries are the students who are directly
engaged in learning at the University. Students are offered places solely on the
basis of academic merit. The University attracts large numbers of students from
non-traditional backgrounds. Other beneficiaries include: companies, public bodies
and charities which employ York graduates; members of the local community who
make use of University facilities, participate in continuing education courses and
attend lectures, concerts and other events; and the wider public, which benefits
from the University’s world-leading contribution to research in the sciences, social
sciences and humanities. The University also makes a significant contribution to the
economy through knowledge transfer and by stimulating inward investment and
business activity.
The University is committed to supporting students financially on the basis of
need. It provides an extensive range of bursaries and scholarships, as well as a
financial hardship fund for students.
Further details are available from our companion publication about public benefit,
Changing and Challenging our Futures: the University of York in the world.

are striving to improve their competitive
performance, and that there are inherent
risks in this for all institutions. Further
uncertainty about the future funding and
regulatory environment arises from the
prospect of a general election in 2015.
However, the Council is of the view that
the University management has a clear
understanding of these risks and is taking
appropriate mitigating action where
possible. As regards the primary financial
risks, these have been clearly identified as
maintaining sufficient levels of operating
cash flow to support planned capital
expenditure; sustaining student numbers
in an increasingly competitive market;
responsiveness to the wider economic
environment; and contingency planning
in respect of new financial reporting
requirements (specifically in respect of
the USS pension scheme liability coming
onto the University’s balance sheet).
In 2013/14, in addition to its
consideration of key institutional
performance indicators (KPIs), the budget
for the following year and the mediumterm financial plan, the Council received
executive reports from members of the
Senior Management Group (SMG) and
annual reports from sub-committees
dealing with audit, health and safety,
and equality and diversity. It also
considered annual reports from the
SMG and the Senate, as well as reports
on the following specific topics:

•	development of a new University
Strategy (an ongoing process led by
the new Vice-Chancellor);
•	possible development of a foundation
college for international students;
•	campus re-development and
estates priorities;
•	review of the Council’s own
effectiveness (via feedback
from members).
In addition to its close scrutiny of
such matters, the Council signed off a
number of formal approvals, in particular
the integration of the BioArCh research
unit into the new Environment building;
further planning work in respect of a
possible new multi-purpose building
on the Heslington East campus; a
model constitution for the colleges of
the University; and the establishment
of a governing council for the new
Constantine College.
In January 2014 the Council was
pleased to welcome Professor Koen
Lamberts as the new Vice-Chancellor
and looks forward to supporting him in
the finalisation and implementation of a
new University Strategy that will advance
the University into the next phase of
its development.
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Statement of Council’s
accounting responsibilities
The Council is required to present annual audited financial statements that are prepared
in accordance with the University’s Statutes, the Statement of Recommended Practice:
Accounting for Further and Higher Education (2007) and other relevant accounting standards.
Within the terms and conditions of a
Financial Memorandum agreed between
the Higher Education Funding Council
for England and the Council of the
University of York, the Council, through
its designated office holder, is required
to prepare financial statements for each
financial year which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs at the balance
sheet date of the University of York and
of the surplus or deficit and cash flows
for that year.
In preparing the financial statements,
the Council has to ensure that:
•	suitable accounting policies are
selected and applied consistently;
•	judgements and estimates are made
that are reasonable and prudent;
•	applicable accounting standards have

been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in
the financial statements;
•	financial statements are prepared
on the going concern basis unless it
is inappropriate to presume that the
University of York will continue in
operation. The Council is satisfied
that the University has adequate
resources to continue in operation for
the foreseeable future. For this reason
the going concern basis continues to
be adopted in the preparation of the
financial statements.
The Council has taken reasonable steps to:
•	ensure that funds from the Higher
Education Funding Council for England
and the National College for Training
and Leadership are used only for the

purposes for which they have been
given, and in accordance with the
Financial Memorandum with the
Funding Council and the Funding
Agreement with the National College
for Training and Leadership and any
other conditions which the Funding
Council or the National College for
Training and Leadership may from
time to time prescribe;
•	ensure that there are appropriate
financial and management controls
in place to safeguard public funds
and funds from other sources;
•	safeguard the assets of the University
and prevent and detect fraud;
•	secure the economical, efficient and
effective management of the University
of York’s resources and expenditure.

York students gave a colourful dance performance at the dazzling Chinese New Year Gala which welcomed the Year of the Horse in February 2014
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Research funders
Maudsley Charity
Modern Humanities Research Association
NSPCC
Nuffield Foundation
Paul Mellon Centre
People’s Trust for Endangered Species
Physiological Society
Prostate Cancer UK
Rail Research UK Association
Rail Safety and Standard Board
Royal Academy of Engineering
Royal Society
Salters’ Institute
Sir Oswald Stoll Foundation
SITRA
Society of Antiquaries of London
St Paul and St Mark Church
‘Infectious’ ideas and the spread of diseases was the theme of a sonic and visual workshop funded by the
Centre for Chronic Diseases and Disorders and the Wellcome Trust at the York Festival of Ideas in June 2014

Stroke Association
The Children’s Society
The Church of England

The following organisations have provided research grant
income to the University.

The Henry Smith Charity
The Jerusalem Trust
Thomas Pocklington Trust
Together for Short Lives

UK RESEARCH COUNCILS

Children with Cancer UK

Arts and Humanities Research Council

Children’s Hospice Association Scotland

Biotechnology and Biological Sciences
Research Council

Commonwealth Housing

Economic and Social Research Council

Crohn’s and Colitis UK

Engineering and Physical Sciences
Research Council

Daphne Jackson Trust

Medical Research Council

EAGA Charitable Trust

Natural Environment Research Council

Education Endowment Foundation

Science and Technology Facilities Council

Esmée Fairbairn Foundation

UK CHARITABLE BODIES
Age UK
Alcohol Research UK
Arthritis Research UK

CRISIS UK

Dean and Chapter of Worcester

Fauna and Flora International
Firefly Research and Evaluation
Foundation for the Sociology of Health
and Illness

Tropical Health and Education Trust
United Bank of Carbon
Waterloo Foundation
Wellcome Trust
Wolfson Foundation
York Against Cancer
York City Centre Churches
Yorkshire Cancer Research
UK GOVERNMENT
British Council
City of York Council
Defence Science and Technology
Laboratory
Department for Communities
and Local Government

Berkswell Parish Church

General Nursing Council for England
and Wales Trust

Big Lottery Fund

Guy's Hospital

British Academy

Health Foundation

British Association of Social Work

Heritage Lottery Fund

British Heart Foundation

Independent Social Research Foundation

Department for International
Development

Broadway

Joseph Rowntree Foundation

Department for Work and Pensions

BUPA Giving

Laing Family Trusts

English Heritage

Cancer Research UK

Leukaemia and Lymphoma Research

Equality Commission for Northern Ireland

Carers Trust

Leverhulme Trust

Food and Environment Research Agency

Chartered Institute of Logistics
and Transport

Marie Curie Palliative Care Research Unit

Historic Scotland

Martin House Childrens’ Hospice

Homes and Communities Agency

Department for Education
Department for Environment,
Food and Rural Affairs
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Innovate UK

Janssen

Sappi

Joint Nature Conservation Committee

JEOL

SESAR Joint Undertaking

London Borough of Croydon

Lloyds Banking Group

Simon Communities of Ireland

Ministry of Defence

Lubrizol

Stockholm Environment Institute

Natural England

Medipex

Swedish Research Council

Northern Ireland Housing Executive

Mercedes Benz High Performance Engines

University of Göttingen

Office of the First Minister and Deputy
First Minister, Northern Ireland

Phase Focus

University of Southern Denmark

Pyropure

University of Strasbourg

The Peak District National Park Authority

Qinetiq

University of Zaragoza

UK Atomic Energy Authority

Qioptic

Vintners Federation of Ireland

Welsh Government

Rail Research UK Association
Roche

OUTSIDE EUROPE

Rolls-Royce

Astellas Foundation

Selex Galileo

Australian Research Council

Syngenta

Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation

The Employment and Skills Group

Bruker Biospin

Tokamak Solutions

Dow Agrosciences

Unilever

GlaxoSmithKline Australia

Unilink Software

Global Coalition to Protect Education
from Attack

EUROPE

The Huntington Library

Aarhus Universitet

Institute for New Economic Thinking

Chalmers University of Technology

Institute of International Education

COST

International Centre for Sports Studies

National Institute for Health and
Clinical Excellence

Deutsche Gesellschaft für
Internationale Zusammenarbeit

International Development
Research Centre

National Institute for Health Research

Eawag

National Institute for Health Research
Evaluation, Trials and Studies
Coordinating Centre

Ecologic Institute

International Fund for Agricultural
Development

UK HEALTH AND HOSPITALS
Bradford Teaching Hospitals Care Trust
Bradford Teaching Hospitals NHS
Foundation Trust
Department of Health
Leeds Primary Care Trust
Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust
London Local Education and
Training Board
Monitor
National Blood Service
National Coordinating Centre for
Health Technology Assessment

NHS Leeds
North and East Yorkshire and
Northern Lincolnshire Comprehensive
Local Research Network

Elsevier
European Centre for Disease
Prevention and Control
European Commission
European Space Agency

Japan Science and Technology Agency
Leakey Foundation
Liz Claiborne Art Ortenberg Foundation
Ministry of Rural Rehabilitation
and Development
National Geographic Society

Public Health England

Fédération Européenne des Associations
Nationales Travaillant avec les Sans-Abri

Sheffield Teaching Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust

Finland Department of the Built
Environment

National Science Foundation

South London and Maudsley NHS Trust

Fondation Nationale des Sciences
Politiques

Research and Advocacy Fund Pakistan

UK INDUSTRY

Freiburg Institute for Advanced Studies

Samsung Electronics

Akcros Chemicals

Hanse-Wissenschaftskolleg

SERDP

Association of British
Pharmaceutical Industry

HERA

Spencer Foundation

Humboldt University

Tissue Therapies

Atomic Weapons Establishment

International Agency for Research
on Cancer

UNICEF

BAE Systems

Jacobs Foundation

Bettys and Taylors

Janssen Pharmaceutica

British Medical Association

MAVA Fondation pour la Nature

Castrol

MHM Holding

Celgene

Nordic Culture Fund

Cizzle Biotechnology
Energy Technologies Institute

Libera Università Internazionale degli
Studi Sociali Guido Carli

Gaist Solutions

Novozymes

Green Screen Productions

Orpheus Institute

Higher Education Academy

Processum

IBM UK

Research Council of Norway

Astra Zeneca UK
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National Institutes of Health
Niigata Prefectural Museum of History
Rice University

United Nations Environment Programme
United Nations Relief and Works Agency
University of Connecticut
US State Department
Wenner-Gren Foundation
Wildlife Conservation Society
The World Bank
World Health Organisation
World Peace Foundation
World Wildlife Fund
Yale University
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Benefactors
The Kirby Laing Foundation for the Centre
for the Study of Christianity and Culture
Novo Nordisk for PhD studentships within
the York Structural Biology Laboratory in
the Department of Chemistry
The Ogden Trust for the Astrocampus
community outreach in the Department
of Physics
Open Society Foundations for the
Post-war Reconstruction and
Development Unit, the Centre for Applied
Human Rights and York Law School
Quorn Foods for the Festival of Ideas
Royal Bank of Scotland for the
York Finance Conference
The Salters’ Institute for the
Centre for Innovation and Research
in Science Education
Professor Lucy Carpenter greets guests at the official opening in March 2014 of the Wolfson Atmospheric Chemistry
Laboratories, the UK’s first dedicated building for air quality and climate change research

The Samuel Storey Family Charitable Trust
for the Storey Archive in the Borthwick
Institute for Archives

MORRELL FELLOWS

Santander Universities UK for MA
scholarships, travel bursaries, internships
and student enterprise

In recognition of their outstanding
support and significant contribution the
University awarded Morrell Fellowships
to Mr John Murrell and Mr Thomas Swan
OBE. Morrell Fellows are a community of
benefactors whose gifts have significantly
advanced the fabric and life of the
University over a number of years.
TRUSTS, FOUNDATIONS, CHARITIES
AND SIMILAR ORGANISATIONS
The University is grateful to the following
organisations who have enabled the
University, academics and students to
develop new and exciting projects, as
well as supporting teaching, scholarship
and research.
Agilent Technologies for the Department
of Electronics
Alan and Babette Sainsbury Charitable
Fund for a Protective Fellowship
for Human Rights Defenders in the
Centre for Applied Human Rights
Altajir Trust for the Department of
Politics, Post War Recovery Studies
The Andrew W Mellon Foundation for
the Borthwick Institute for Archives
The Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation
for the Centre for Health Economics
Bloomberg for the York Finance
Conference
British Cycling for the Cycle Track
at York Sports Village

The C and J B Morrell Trust for the
Department of Politics
The Charles Brotherton Trust for the
York Student Support Fund
Cycle Alert for support for YuCycle
community cycle ride 2014
Derwent FM for support for YuCycle
community cycle ride 2014
Ede & Ravenscroft for Student Support
*Eris and Larry Field Family Foundation
for the US Alumni Connections Fund and
a Visiting Professorship in the Department
of English
Foundation for Sport and the Arts for the
Dame Janet Baker Masters Scholarship
The Glaziers Trust for a bursary for the
MA in Stained Glass Conservation and
Heritage Management in the Department
of History of Art

Shepherd Group for the Festival of Ideas
The Sigrid Rausing Trust for the Centre
for Applied Human Rights
Sport England Yorkshire for York Active
and Try Sport
The Stephen Clark Charitable Trust for
the Centre for Applied Human Rights
The Sylvia and Colin Shepherd Charitable
Trust for performances in the Department
of Theatre, Film and Television
TSYS Europe for the TSYS Masters
Scholarship in the York Management
School

The Headley Trust for MA scholarships in
Stained Glass and Heritage Management
in the Department of History of Art

The Wolfson Foundation for the Wolfson
Atmospheric Chemistry Laboratory and
the Wolfson Postgraduate Scholarships
in the Humanities

Hogan Lovells International for bursary
support for undergraduates in the
York Law School

York Against Cancer for the York Against
Cancer studentships in the Department
of Biology

The Holbeck Charitable Trust for the
Festival of Ideas

Yorkshire Philosophical Society for the
International Students Hardship Fund

J A Clark Charitable Trust for the
Centre for Applied Human Rights

The University would like to thank all
those companies who through their Gift
Matching Schemes add significantly to
the support of alumni and friends. These
include Deloitte, Ernst & Young, Gartner,
The Getty Foundation, Goldman Sachs
Foundation, Sandford Bernstein.

The Jerusalem Trust for the Centre for
the Study of Christianity and Culture
The Joseph Rowntree Charitable Trust
for the Centre for Applied Human Rights
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INDIVIDUALS
The University would like to thank
alumni, staff and friends who gave money
to the University of York in 2013/14. More
people gave to the University than ever
before, with donations, many inspired by
the John Murrell Matching Fund, resulting
in an increase of 21% on the previous year.
We would particularly like to thank our
growing number of Yorkies donors – those
who commit to give monthly, quarterly
or annually to help current students.
These regular gifts help the University to
plan ahead with confidence and this year
have enabled us to double the number of
Achieving Excellence Bursaries awarded.
The Deramore Circle, established in our
50th Anniversary year, gives special
recognition to those of our Yorkies
members who donate £500 or more each
year. We thank donors who have increased
their giving to this level this year, or made
their first gift.
The University would like to thank the
following individuals who have made
gifts of over £1,000 in the last year.

Mr Paul Jarvis and Mrs Philippa Jarvis
for the James Jarvis Bursary
Mrs Ann Jefferson for Achieving
Excellence Bursaries
Mr Peter Joyce and Mrs Susan Joyce
for Achieving Excellence Bursaries
Professor Anne Laurence for Achieving
Excellence Bursaries
Sir John Lawton CBE FRS and Lady
Dorothy Lawton for the Bridge Fund
for Postgraduate Scholarships
*Dr Ruth Lister for the US Alumni
Connections Fund
Mr Francis McCormack for the
Department of History
*Mrs Julia Morgan for the US Alumni
Connections Fund
Mr George Muir for the Department
of Music
Mr John Murrell for the Achieving
Excellence Bursaries and the John Murrell
Fund for Disability Support
Sir Christopher and Lady Mia O’Donnell
for the Department of Music

YUCYCLE
This University and City cycling event,
held two weeks before the Yorkshire
Grand Départ of the Tour de France, raised
over £13,000 for the Achieving Excellence
Bursary Appeal. The 165 cyclists included
staff and students from of the University,
led by Vice-Chancellor Professor Koen
Lamberts and his team.
ONGOING SUPPORTERS
We would like to make a special mention
of those supporters whose gifts enabled
projects to continue to run in 2013/14.
In particular:
Mr Victor Lang for the Jiangning
Foundation at the University of York
Garfield Weston Foundation for the
Centre for Novel Agricultural products
and the Centre for the Study of
Christianity and Culture
The Holbeck Charitable Trust for the
Centre for Immunology and Infection
and postgraduate scholarships

*Mr Morgan Bale for the York Student
Support Fund

Dr Roger Oliphant for the
Department of Chemistry

The Bowland Charitable Trust for
ongoing support of the Institute for
Effective Education

The Late Professor Greville Bloodworth
for the Department of Electronics

Mr Christopher Perry for the
Department of Music

LEGACY PLEDGES

Professor Sir Ronald Cooke and Lady
Barbara Cooke for the Department
of Theatre, Film and Television

*Dr Charles Renfro and Ms Patricia
Renfro for the Bridge Fund for
Postgraduate Scholarships

Professor Eleanor Dodson for
the Guy Dodson Fund in the
Department of Chemistry

Mrs Diana Ridley for the
Cancer Research Unit

Mr Andrew Fleming and Mrs
Lucinda Fleming for the Fleming
Conservation Fund
Dr George Goldby and Mrs Sara Goldby
for Achieving Excellence Bursaries
Mr Bryan Gray CBE DL and Mrs Lydia Gray
for the Gray Scholarships in Chemistry
and History
Dr Jane Grenville OBE for The Yorkies Fund
Mr Paul Griffiths and Mrs Janet Griffiths
for the York Management School
Mr Simon Hamill for the Alcuin
Scholarships in the Department of History
Miss Françoise Hampson for the
Norman Hampson Fund
Ms Michele Hampson for the
Norman Hampson Fund
Mr Philip Harding for the Centre
for Applied Human Rights
Lord Haskins and Lady Haskins for
the Centre for Applied Human Rights
*Dr Christopher Hill for the Guy Dodson
Fund in the Department of Chemistry

Dr Janet Sidaway for the
York Student Support Fund
Mr Nigel Stockton for the
Alcuin College Fund
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The University would like to thank those
people who have made provision in their
will to support the University including
our new pledgers in this year. Individuals
who pledge a legacy are invited to become
members of the Heslington Circle,
allowing recognition of the gift within
their lifetime.
Darrell Buttery
Jonathan Cullen

Mrs Alexandra Tatton-Brown for
improvements to the Drama Barn

Philip Harris

Mr John Tilney for the Department
of English and Related Literature

Professor Peter Venables

Philip Teague

Mr Owen Trotter for the York Student
Support Fund

We would also like to thank all our
legators who wish to remain anonymous.

Mr Bill Trythall for the Department
of History

VOLUNTEERS

Dr Malcolm Wallace for Achieving
Excellence Bursaries
Mr Roy Wallington for Achieving
Excellence Bursaries
Mr Peter Whelpton for the
York Opportunity Awards
Dr Anthony H Wild CBE for the
redevelopment of buildings in the
Department of Chemistry and the
Wild Fund for PhDs in Chemistry

Mr Paul Hodges for Achieving
Excellence Bursaries

And those donors to the Departments
of Music, Mathematics and the Centre
for the Study of Christianity and Culture
who wish to remain anonymous

Mr Richard House for Masters
Scholarships

*denotes donor via the University of York
in America Foundation

We would like to thank all alumni and
friends who have given their time as
volunteers in the last year to support
University initiatives.
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Financial report
This report reviews the financial activities of the University
group in 2013/14 and should be read alongside the financial
statements and the notes to the accounts.
Trading performance
Total income for the year rose to £305.4m
from £286.6m in 2012/13, an increase of
6.5%. This was mainly due to a substantial
rise in student fee income, up by £24.3m
(22.4% increase), partly offset by a
reduction in Funding Council grants of
£8.3m (14.6% decline). The year saw
the arrival of the second cohort of home
undergraduate students to commence
under the higher tuition fee regime, which
helped drive the increase in fee income,
though overall student numbers (FTE) also
increased by 2.2%. Research grant income
has continued to recover well (up 10.6%
year on year) after a challenging period
following the economic downturn.
Profits on the sale of fixed assets were
not as important to the result in this year,
down to £0.2m from £4.8m in 2012/13.
Total expenditure for the year was
£297.2m, up from £279.7m, an increase of
6.2%. This was due to rises in staff costs
(up 7.9% to £166.0m) and other operating
expenses (up 4.2% to £103.8m). Staff costs
increased largely due to higher numbers
of staff employed, both to offer an

improved learning experience for our
students and to support the increased
levels of research grant activity.
Overall rates of pay increased with
the pay award (1% August 2013) and
incremental progression (up to 2%).
The increase in other operating
costs reflects the increased activity in
the research arena, the expansion in
accommodation available to students
and the continued investment in
maintaining the University estate.
The retained surplus for the year was
£10.4m, compared with a surplus of
£8.7m in the prior year, an improvement
of 20.5%. The increase was in the main
due to the increased income provided by
the fee regime for Home and EU students,
partly offset by increased investment
in staff and infrastructure designed
to improve and enhance the physical
and academic environment.

Cash flow
Operating cash flow has again increased
this year, to £27.5m, compared with
£20.7m in 2012/13, a rise of 33.3%.

One of the first recipients of a Prince William Scholarship in Film, Television and Games was Theatre, Film
and Television MA student, Sam Hughes, who met the Prince at a BAFTA event in September 2013

This has been largely due to the improved
year-on-year trading result, the impact
of which was accentuated by a substantial
profit on sale of a fixed asset in the
previous year (£4.8m in 2012/13, £0.2m
in 2013/14). Cash receipts have become
far more volatile in their timing as HEFCE
funding has reduced (and will reduce
further) and fees payable by students
via the Student Loans Company become
more important.

Balance sheet
Total net assets grew to £243.8m, from
£239.1m as at July 2013. The value of fixed
assets rose by £6.4m to £386.1m, and
creditors falling due after more than one
year decreased by £3.2m, reflecting loan
repayments made. These movements
were partly offset by an increase of £1.0m
in the value of net current liabilities and
an increase of £4.5m in the value of net
pension liability. The growth in value of
net pension liability came after several
years of recovery and was due to the
relatively low increase in the value of
the plan’s assets (£9.1m) compared with
the increase in the value of the benefit
obligations (£13.6m). The valuations
were particularly affected by the actuarial
performance of the assets and liabilities.

Banking covenants
The University’s banking covenants
require it to achieve an annual operating
cash flow equivalent to at least 110% of
the recurrent cost of servicing its debt.
In addition, the University’s total debt is
limited to 65% of its revalued net worth.
At the end of the 2013/14 financial
year, the University’s operating cash flow
was 319% of the cost of its recurrent debt
service costs.
Net worth also exceeded the minimum
requirement on both an historic and
a revalued asset basis. On current
projections, the University considers
it has sufficient scope to cover existing
commitments and retain headroom to
satisfy the unfunded component of its
current capital programme.
The covenants in the HEFCE
Financial Memorandum concerning
borrowing limits and the annual cost
of debt servicing were also more than
adequately met. The annual servicing
cost (ASC) mechanism used by HEFCE
was dropped with effect from 1st August
2014 in favour of a threshold based on
a multiple of average earnings before
interest tax depreciation and amortisation
(EBITDA). Institutions operating within
the thresholds agreed with HEFCE under
the old system have automatic permission
under the new regime.
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Dancers make best use of the brand new dance studio in the Sport Centre on Heslington West

Going concern
The University’s academic activities,
together with factors likely to affect
future developments, performance and
position, are set out on pages 2–3. The
financial position of the University and its
cash flows, liquidity position, borrowing
facilities and banking covenants are
described in this financial report and
in more detail in the accounts.
The University’s current forecasts and
projections, including best estimates of
future changes in Government funding,
show that the University has adequate
resources to continue in operation for
the foreseeable future. Consequently
the Council continues to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the
Annual Report and Financial Statements.

Pensions
Following the FRS 17 basis of accounting
and disclosure, the University of York
Pension Fund (UoYPF) was shown to
be in deficit by £6.0m or 4.3% of its
actuarially defined liabilities at the
financial year end. As noted above, this
result reflected a £4.5m increase in the
liability position of the Fund, due to
investment performance and yields being
insufficient to compensate for adverse
actuarial experience.
The changes implemented by the
Trustees in 2009, including increasing
employer contributions while increasing
flexibility for members, continue to
keep the Fund stronger than would
otherwise have been the case. The UoYPF

scheme rules changed with effect from 1st
August 2013. Joiners have to complete a
three‑year waiting period before being
eligible to join the UoYPF and have
the option of joining the University’s
defined contribution scheme during
this period.
The University is also a member of the
sector-wide University Superannuation
Scheme (USS). In accordance with
established practice, this scheme does
not report FRS 17 figures. In May 2011,
the Joint Negotiating Committee of USS
agreed changes in terms which have
affected both existing members prior to
October 2011 and members who have
joined since that date. Pre-October 2011
members’ changes include a higher
contribution and a higher normal
retirement age for future service. For
post-October 2011 entrants and re-joiners
to USS, a new section of the scheme was
introduced where benefits are calculated
on service and salary at the end of each
year, rather than on final salary on
retirement or leaving.
These changes to the terms of the
scheme have been designed to strengthen
the scheme’s financial position.
It should be noted that with effect
from the financial year 2015/16, the
University will need to report under
revised Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (GAAP) in the form of FRS
102. A significant requirement of this
FRS is for the University to disclose
its estimated share of the liability of
USS on its balance sheet.

Prospects
The results for 2013/14 were better than
planned, despite the continued volatility
in the student market. Home and EU
student numbers were in excess of our
expectations, despite the further change
to student number controls with an
A level grade threshold falling to ABB
from AAB. The University has a sound
base on which to model its projections,
which have been developed in view of
known and likely further changes in the
Higher Education sector. The main focus
of estate development has moved from
the Heslington East site, where initial
phases are complete and in operation
academically and commercially, to the
need to modernise the original campus
where the University is planning a
programme of replacement and renewal
to deal with the older buildings in use.
The cautious approach to planning
which has been adopted in previous
years in response to a level of uncertainty
across a number of areas has been
continued. Student admissions in
2013/14 were positive and the indications
we have are that 2014/15 will also be
in line with our targets. With research
income recovering and on the rise,
there is optimism that financial results
will underpin the need to continuously
invest in the student experience and in
campus infrastructure.

Building on the success of the cycle track at Heslington East,
the University, together with British Cycling, has funded a £1.1m
velodrome. These new facilities provide a focus for the enthusiasm
generated by the Tour de France visit to York in July 2014

Annual Report and Financial Statements | 2014

19

Independent auditor’s report
to the Council of the University of York

W

e have audited the Group and
University financial statements
(the ‘financial statements’) of
the University of York for the
year ended 31 July 2014 which comprise
the Consolidated Income and Expenditure
Account, the Consolidated and University
Balance Sheets, the Consolidated Cash
Flow Statement, the Consolidated
Statement of Total Recognised Gains and
Losses and the related notes. The financial
reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparation is applicable
law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice).
This report is made solely to the
Council, in accordance with the Charters
and Statutes of the University. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the Council those matters
we are required to state to it in an
auditor’s report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the Council for
our audit work, for this report, or for
the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of the
University Council and Auditors
As explained more fully in the Statement
of Council’s accounting responsibilities set
out on page 11, the Council is responsible
for the preparation of financial statements
which give a true and fair view. Our
responsibility is to audit, and express
an opinion on, the financial statements
in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing
(UK and Ireland). Those standards require
us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the
financial statements
An audit involves obtaining evidence
about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements sufficient
to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether caused
by fraud or error. This includes an
assessment of: whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the Group’s
and University’s circumstances and
have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed; the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates
made by the Council; and the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
In addition, we read all the financial and
non-financial information in the Annual
Report and Financial Statements to
identify material inconsistencies with
the audited financial statements. If we
become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we
consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements:
•	give a true and fair view of the state of
the affairs of the Group and University
as at 31 July 2014 and of the Group’s
income and expenditure, recognised
gains and losses and cash flows for the
year then ended;
•	have been properly prepared in
accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice;
•	have been prepared in accordance
with the Statement of Recommended
Practice – Accounting for Further
and Higher Education.

Notes:
(a)	The maintenance and integrity of the University
of York website is the responsibility of the
University; the work carried out by the auditors
does not involve consideration of these matters
and, accordingly, the auditors accept no
responsibility for any changes that may have
occurred to the financial statements since
they were initially presented on the website.

(b)	Legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in
other jurisdictions.

Opinion on other matters prescribed
in the HEFCE Audit Code of Practice
issued under the Further and
Higher Education Act 1992
In our opinion, in all material respects:
•	funds from whatever source
administered by the University
for specific purposes have been
properly applied to those purposes;
•	income has been applied in accordance
with the University’s Statutes;
•	funds provided by HEFCE have
been applied in accordance with the
Financial Memorandum and any other
terms and conditions attached to them.

Matters on which we are required
to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the
following matter where the HEFCE Audit
Code of Practice issued under the Further
and Higher Education Act 1992 requires
us to report to you if, in our opinion:
•	the statement of internal control
included as part of the Corporate
Governance Statement is inconsistent
with our knowledge of the University
and Group.

Michael Rowley
For and on behalf of KPMG LLP,
Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants
Birmingham
18 November 2014
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Statement of principal accounting policies
1. Basis of preparation
These financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with
the Statement of Recommended
Practice: Accounting for Further and
Higher Education and in accordance
with applicable UK accounting standards.
The financial statements are prepared
in accordance with the historical cost
convention modified by the revaluation
of certain assets.

2. Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements
include the University and all its
subsidiaries for the financial year to
31 July 2014.The results of subsidiaries
acquired or disposed of during the
period are included in the consolidated
income and expenditure account from
the date of acquisition or up to the date
of disposal. Intra-group transactions are
eliminated on consolidation. The results
of joint venture entities and associates
are included in the consolidated results
on a gross equity basis.
The consolidated financial statements
do not include those of the Students’
Union and Graduate Students’ Association
because the University does not control
those organisations.

3. Income recognition
Funding Council teaching and research
grants are accounted for in the period
to which they relate.
Fee income is credited to the income
and expenditure account over the
period in which students are studying.
Bursaries and scholarships are accounted
for as expenditure and not deducted
from income.
Recurrent income from grants,
contracts and other services rendered
are accounted for on an accruals basis and
included to the extent of the completion
of the contract or service concerned;
any payments received in advance
of such performance are recognised
on the balance sheet as liabilities.
Donations with restrictions are
recognised when relevant conditions
have been met; in many cases recognition
is directly related to expenditure incurred
on specific purposes. Donations which
are to be retained for the benefit of
the University are recognised in the
statement of total recognised gains

and losses and in endowments; other
donations are recognised by inclusion
as other income in the income and
expenditure account.
Non-recurrent grants received in
respect of the acquisition or construction
of fixed assets are treated as deferred
capital grants. Such grants are credited
to deferred capital grants and an annual
transfer is made to the income and
expenditure account over the useful
economic life of the asset, at the same
rate as the depreciation charge on the
asset for which the grant was awarded.
Non-recurrent grants in respect of
the acquisition of land are treated as
donations in the year and included in
the income and expenditure account.
Endowment and investment income
is credited to the income and expenditure
account on a receivable basis. Income
from restricted endowments not
expended in accordance with the
restrictions of the endowment, is
transferred from the income and
expenditure account to restricted
endowments. Any realised gains or
losses from dealing in the related assets
are retained within the endowment
funds in the balance sheet.

4. Agency arrangements
Funds the University received and
disbursed as a paying agent on behalf
of a funding body are excluded from the
income and expenditure of the University
where the University is exposed to
minimal risk or enjoys minimal economic
benefit related to the transaction.

5. Leases and hire purchase contracts
Costs in respect of operating leases are
charged on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Finance leases, which
substantially transfer all the benefits
and risks of ownership of an asset to
the University, are treated as if the
asset had been purchased outright.
The assets are included in fixed assets
and the capital elements of the leasing
commitments are shown as obligations
under finance leases. The lease rentals
are treated as consisting of capital and
interest elements. The capital element is
applied in order to reduce outstanding
obligations and the interest element is
charged to the income and expenditure
account in proportion to the reducing

capital element outstanding. Assets held
under finance leases are depreciated over
the shorter of the lease term or the useful
economic lives of equivalent owned assets.

6. Taxation
The University is an exempt charity
within the meaning of schedule 3 of the
Charities Act 2011 and as such is a charity
within the meaning of section 506(1) of the
Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988
(ICTA 1988). Accordingly, the University
is potentially exempt from taxation in
respect of income or capital gains received
within categories covered by section
478 of the Corporation Taxes Act 2010 or
section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable
Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such
income or gains are applied to exclusively
charitable purposes.
The University receives no similar
exemption in respect of Value Added
Tax. Irrecoverable VAT on purchases is
included in the costs of such purchases.
Any irrecoverable VAT allocated to tangible
fixed assets is included in their cost.
The University’s subsidiary companies
are subject to corporation tax and
VAT in the same way as any other
commercial organisation.
Deferred tax is provided in full on timing
differences which result in an obligation
at the balance sheet date to pay more tax,
or a right to pay less tax, at a future date,
at rates expected to apply when they
crystallise based on current rates and law.
Timing differences arise from the inclusion
of items of income and expenditure in
taxation computations in periods different
from those in which they are included in
financial statements. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent they are
regarded as more likely than not that they
will be recovered. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

7. Endowment assets

Endowment assets are held at market
value. Any increase or decrease in value
arising on the revaluation of endowment
assets is added to or subtracted from the
related endowment funds. The movement
is reported in the statement of total
recognised gains and losses.

8. Investment property
Investment properties are interests in land
and buildings that are held for investment
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potential. They are held at valuation
and not depreciated.
Any increase in value arising on the
revaluation of investment property is
credited to the revaluation reserve, via
the statement of total recognised gains
and losses. Permanent diminutions in
value are charged to the income and
expenditure account to the extent
that they are not covered by previous
revaluation surpluses. Temporary
diminutions in value are carried forward
as a negative revaluation reserve.

9. Land and buildings
Land and buildings are stated at cost.
Costs incurred in relation to a tangible
fixed asset, after its initial purchase or
production, are capitalised to the extent
that they increase the expected future
benefits to the University from the existing
tangible fixed asset beyond its previously
assessed standard of performance; the cost
of any such enhancements is added to the
gross carrying amount of the tangible
fixed asset concerned.
The cost of buildings includes the
related interest cost incurred.
Freehold land is not depreciated.
Freehold buildings are depreciated
over their expected useful economic
life of 50 years. Temporary buildings
are depreciated over 10 years.
Leasehold land and buildings
are amortised over the life of the
lease up to a maximum of 50 years.
No depreciation is charged on assets
in the course of construction.
Where buildings are acquired with
the aid of specific grants, they are
capitalised and depreciated. The related
grants are credited to a deferred capital
grant account and released to the
income and expenditure account over
the expected useful economic life of the
related asset on a basis consistent with
the depreciation policy.
Repairs and maintenance expenditure
to ensure that a tangible fixed asset
maintains its previously recognised
standard of performance is recognised in
the income and expenditure account in
the period it is incurred. The University
has a planned maintenance programme,
which is reviewed on an annual basis.
Tangible fixed assets surplus to
requirements are held at the lower
of cost and net realisable value.

10. Heritage assets
Works of art and other valuable artefacts
(heritage assets) are capitalised and
recognised at the cost or value of
the acquisition, where such a cost
or valuation is reasonably obtainable.
Heritage assets are not depreciated

since their long economic life and
high residual value mean that any
depreciation would not be material.

11. Equipment
Equipment costing less than £20,000
per individual item is written off to
the income and expenditure account
in the period of acquisition. All other
equipment is capitalised at cost.
Assets are depreciated over
their useful economic life as follows:
• Equipment – up to 10 years
•	Mechanical and electrical
installations – 15–40 years
• Vehicles – 3–20 years.
Where equipment is acquired with
the aid of specific grants, it is capitalised
and depreciated in accordance with the
policy set out above, with the related
grant credited to a deferred capital grant
account and released to the income
and expenditure account over the
life of the asset.

12. Electronic resources
Electronic media which cost over £20,000
and are purchased outright are capitalised
as fixed assets as control over the asset
is normally obtained by the University.
Annual licence agreements are treated
as revenue expenditure as the University
does not have control of the information
due to copyright or similar conditions
being applied.

13. Investments
Listed investments held as fixed assets
are shown at market value. Investments
in subsidiary undertakings are shown
at cost less provision for impairment,
and investments in associates are shown
in the consolidated balance sheet at
the attributable share of net assets.
Current asset investments, which
may include listed investments, are
shown at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

14. Stock
Stock is stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Where necessary,
provision is made for obsolete,
slow‑moving and defective stocks.

15. Cash flows and liquid resources
Cash flows comprise increases or
decreases in cash. Cash includes cash
in hand, cash at bank, and deposits
repayable on demand. Deposits are
repayable on demand if they are available
within 24 hours without penalty. No
other investments, however liquid,
are included as cash.
Liquid resources include term deposits,
government securities and loan stock
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held as part of the University’s treasury
management activities. They exclude
any such assets held as endowment
asset investments.

16. Foreign currency translation
Assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
financial year, with all resulting exchange
differences being taken to the income
and expenditure account in the period
in which they arise.

17. Financial instruments
The University uses derivative financial
instruments called interest rate swaps
to reduce exposure to interest rate
movements. Such derivative financial
instruments are not held for speculative
purposes and relate to actual assets or
liabilities or to probable commitments,
changing the nature of the interest rate
by converting a fixed rate to a variable rate
or vice versa. Interest differentials under
these swaps are recognised by adjusting
net interest payable over the periods of the
contracts. In instances where the derivative
financial instrument ceases to be a hedge
for an actual asset or liability, then it is
marked to market and any resulting profit
or loss recognised at that time.
A financial asset and a financial liability
are offset only when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts and an intention either to settle
on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

18. Joint venture entities and associates
Where the University has a long-term
investment in an entity over which it
exercises joint control with one or more
other ventures, then the investment is
treated as a joint venture. Where the
University has a participating interest in
an entity over which it exercises significant
operational and financial control, but
which is not a subsidiary, then the
investment is treated as an associate.
The joint ventures are accounted for using
the gross equity method, such that the
University’s share of the entities’ gross
assets and liabilities are incorporated into
the consolidated balance sheet. Where a
joint venture revalues its fixed assets or
investment assets, then the University’s
share of the joint venture’s revaluation
reserve will appear in the consolidated
revaluation reserve.
The University’s share of joint ventures’
net income is reported in the consolidated
income and expenditure account.
The joint ventures are included on the
University balance sheet at cost.
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Michael Morpurgo, one of the UK’s best-loved authors and storytellers, gave a reading at the York Festival of Ideas in June 2014

19. Intra-group transactions
Gains or losses on any intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full.
Amounts in relation to debts and claims
between undertakings included in the
consolidation are also eliminated.
Balances between the University and
its associates and joint ventures are not
eliminated; unsettled normal trading
transactions are included as current
assets or liabilities. Any gains or losses
are included in the carrying amount of
assets of either entity; the part relating
to the University’s share is eliminated.

20. Charitable donations
and endowment funds
Charitable donations are normally
recognised in the income and
expenditure account.
Where charitable donations are
to be retained for the benefit of the
University as specified by the donors,
these are accounted for as endowments.
There are three main types:
•	Unrestricted permanent endowments –
the donor has specified that the fund is
to be permanently invested to generate
an income stream for the general
benefit of the University;
•	Restricted expendable endowments –
the donor has specified a particular
objective other than the purchase or
construction of tangible fixed assets,

and the University can convert the
donated sum into income;
•	Restricted permanent endowments –
the donor has specified that the
fund is to be permanently invested
to generate an income stream to be
applied to a particular objective.

21. Retirement benefits
The University contributes to the
Universities Superannuation Scheme
(USS) and the University of York Pension
Fund (UoYPF). Both schemes are defined
benefit schemes but the USS is a multiemployer scheme and it is not possible
to identify the assets of the scheme
which are attributable to the University.
In accordance with FRS 17 ‘Retirement
benefits’, the USS scheme is accounted
for on a defined contribution basis and
contributions to this scheme are included
as expenditure in the period in which
they are payable.
The University fully adopts FRS 17
for UoYPF. The cost of providing benefits
is determined using the projected
unit method, with actuarial valuations
being carried out at each balance sheet
date. Actuarial gains and losses are
recognised in full in the period in which
they occur, through the statement
of total recognised gains and losses.
A defined contribution plan
has been established as the main

auto‑enrolment vehicle for University
support staff. The investment of scheme
contributions for this plan are managed
by The People’s Pension.

22. Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets
Provisions are recognised in the financial
statements when the University has a
present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable
that a transfer of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation, and
a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. The amount
recognised as a provision is discounted
to present value where the time value
of money is material. The discount rate
used reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and reflects
any risks specific to the liability.
Contingent liabilities are disclosed
by way of a note, when the definition
of a provision is not met and includes
three scenarios: a possible rather than
a present obligation; a possible rather
than a probable outflow of economic
benefits; an inability to measure the
economic outflow.
Contingent assets are disclosed by
way of a note, where there is a possible,
rather than present, asset arising from
a past event.
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Consolidated income and
expenditure account
for the year ended 31 July 2014

Year ended
31 July 2014

Income

Year ended
31 July 2013

Note

£000

£000

Funding Council grants

1

48,817

57,148

Tuition fees and education contracts

2

132,235

107,962

Research grants and contracts

3

55,124

49,824

Other income

4

72,870

73,117

211

4,831

5

3,145

1,819

312,402

294,701

Profit on disposal of fixed assets and investments
Endowment and investment income
Total income of the Group and share of income from joint ventures
Less share of income from joint ventures

13

Total income

(7,024)

(8,060)

305,378

286,641

Expenditure
Staff costs

6

166,048

153,818

Depreciation

7

21,195

20,228

Other operating expenses

8

104,052

99,629

Interest and other finance costs

9

5,929

6,041

Total expenditure

8

297,224

279,716

8,154

6,925

Share of operating profit in joint ventures

Surplus after depreciation of assets and before tax
13

1,196

1,012

Taxation

10

10

11

9,360

7,948

2

15

9,362

7,963

Surplus after depreciation of assets and tax
Minority interest

25

Surplus
Transfer from accumulated income on endowment funds

21

1,112

732

Surplus for the year retained within general reserves

22

10,474

8,695

The Group has no revalued assets which are depreciated and therefore there is no difference between the surplus as reported and
the historical cost results. The consolidated income and expenditure account of the University and its subsidiaries relates wholly to
continuing operations.
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Balance sheets
as at 31 July 2014

Consolidated

University

2014

2013

2014

2013

Note

£000

£000

£000

£000

Tangible assets

11

386,111

379,696

345,136

341,341

Investments

12

1,647

1,638

24,682

24,681

Investment in joint ventures

13

9,114

9,120

10,912

12,416

396,872

390,454

380,730

378,438

Endowment assets

14

8,417

7,772

8,417

7,772

742

690

257

231

Debtors

15

34,567

35,511

44,709

43,875

Investments and short-term deposits

16

20,655

23,221

20,655

21,323

Fixed assets

Current assets
Stock

Cash at bank and in hand
Total current assets
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

17

3,411

998

836

-

59,375

60,420

66,457

65,429

(68,708)

(68,719)

(64,112)

(63,852)

Net current (liabilities)/assets

(9,333)

(8,299)

2,345

1,577

Total assets less current liabilities

395,956

389,927

391,492

387,787
(149,270)

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

18

(146,074)

(149,270)

(146,074)

Provisions for liabilities

19

(88)

(98)

-

-

249,794

240,559

245,418

238,517

Net assets excluding pension liability
Net pension liability

30

Net assets including pension liability
Deferred capital grants

20

(5,976)

(1,469)

(5,976)

(1,469)

243,818

239,090

239,442

237,048

122,518

123,918

114,758

115,558

Endowments
Permanent unrestricted

21

754

734

754

734

Expendable restricted

21

2,350

2,002

2,350

2,002

Permanent restricted

21

5,313

5,036

5,313

5,036

8,417

7,772

8,417

7,772

Reserves
Income and expenditure account (excluding pension reserve)

22

119,623

110,237

122,043

115,043

Pension reserve

23

(5,976)

(1,469)

(5,976)

(1,469)

113,647

108,768

116,067

113,574

(1,175)

(1,781)

200

144

112,472

106,987

116,267

113,718

411

413

-

-

243,818

239,090

239,442

237,048

Income and expenditure account (including pension reserve)
Revaluation reserve

24

Total reserves
Minority interest
Total funds
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The financial statements on pages 20 to 46 were approved by the Council on 14 November 2014 and signed on its behalf by:

Professor Koen Lamberts		
Vice-Chancellor		

David Dickson					
Graham Gilbert
Treasurer					Director of Finance
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Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 July 2014

Note

Year ended
31 July 2014

Year ended
31 July 2013

£000

£000

Net cash inflow from operating activities

26

27,545

20,677

Returns on investments and servicing of finance

27

(4,721)

(4,256)

Capital expenditure and financial investment

28

(20,655)

(15,423)

Financing

29

(2,400)

1,506

(231)

2,504

Year ended
31 July 2014

Year ended
31 July 2013

£000

£000

(Decrease)/Increase in cash in the year

Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt
(Decrease)/Increase in cash in the year

(231)

2,504

Cash outflow/(inflow) from debt

2,400

(1,506)

Change in net debt

2,169

998

Net debt at 31 July 2013

(125,659)

(126,657)

Net debt at 31 July 2014

(123,490)

(125,659)

Cash flows

Other changes

At 31 July 2014

£000

£000

£000

£000

998

2,413

-

3,411

23,221

(2,566)

-

20,655

At 1 August 2013

Analysis of changes in net debt
Cash at bank and in hand
Short-term deposits (Note 16)
Endowment cash (Note 14)
Debt due within one year (Note 17)
Debt due after one year (Note 18)
Total net debt

2,092

(78)

-

2,014

26,311

(231)

-

26,080

(2,700)

2,700

(3,496)

(3,496)

(149,270)

(300)

3,496

(146,074)

(151,970)

2,400

-

(149,570)

(125,659)

2,169

-

(123,490)
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Statement of consolidated total
recognised gains and losses
for the year ended 31 July 2014

Year ended
31 July 2014

Note
Surplus for the financial year

Year ended
31 July 2013

£000

£000

9,362

7,963

Increase/(decrease) in endowment asset investments value

21

663

(12)

New endowments

21

1,094

1,347

Actuarial (loss)/gain in respect of the pension scheme

23

(5,595)

8,326

Increase in value of investments

24

56

130

Increase/(decrease) in joint venture property investment value

24

550

(587)

6,130

17,167

Year ended
31 July 2014

Year ended
31 July 2013

Total recognised gains for the year

Reconciliation
Opening reserves and endowments

£000
114,759

£000
97,592

Total recognised gains for the year

6,130

17,167

Closing reserves and endowments

120,889

114,759

As at 31 July 2014
Reserves
Endowments

112,472

106,987

8,417

7,772

120,889

114,759
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Notes to the accounts
1. Funding Council grants

Year ended
31 July 2014

Year ended
31 July 2013

£000

£000

– HEFCE Teaching

15,476

23,330

– HEFCE Research

24,527

25,584

– HEFCE Bursary funding

915

384

– HEFCE Museum funding

120

120

-

7

3,269

3,417

2,597

2,552

Recurrent grants

– National College for Teaching and Leadership
Specific grants from HEFCE
Released from deferred capital grants
– Buildings (Note 20)
– Equipment (Note 20)

1,913

1,754

48,817

57,148

Year ended
31 July 2014

Year ended
31 July 2013

£000

£000

Full-time home and EU students

70,230

55,260

Full-time international students

40,016

35,237

6,685

6,239

2. Tuition fees and education contracts

Other teaching contract course fees
Other fees
Part-time students

222
2,345

343
1,953

Research training support grants

8,719

Short course fees

4,018

3,760

132,235

107,962

Year ended
31 July 2014

Year ended
31 July 2013

£000

£000

19,822

15,808

7,572

6,913

3. Research grants and contracts

UK research councils
UK based charitable bodies
UK central government bodies, local authorities, health and hospital authorities

5,170

13,101

14,254

UK industries, commerce and public corporations

1,182

1,284

EU government bodies

9,167

6,516

EU other sources

1,923

1,740

Other overseas

2,186

2,896

Other bodies

171

413

55,124

49,824

Research grants and contract income includes £597,000 (2013: £674,000) released from equipment deferred capital grants (Note 20).
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Notes to the accounts (continued)
4. Other income

Residences, catering and conferences

Year ended
31 July 2014

Year ended
31 July 2013

£000

£000

33,366

31,012
3,373

Residences, catering and conferences – joint ventures (Note 13)

4,189

Other services rendered

2,210

2,926

Released from deferred capital grants – buildings (Note 20)

2,421

2,320

Released from deferred capital grants – equipment (Note 20)

1,449

1,458

1,704

1,602

544

470

34

174

Other income
– Academic departments
– Academic services
– Administrative departments
– Premises

1,124

1,030

– Specific grants

4,920

6,294

– Subsidiary income

17,064

15,472

– Joint venture income (Note 13)

2,835

4,687

– Other

1,010

2,299

72,870

73,117

Year ended
31 July 2014

Year ended
31 July 2013

£000

£000

349

302

1,085

1,004

(5,836)

(5,073)

7,547

5,586

1,711

513

3,145

1,819

5. Endowment and investment income

Income from endowment assets (Note 21)
Income from investments
Net pension finance (Note 30b)
– Benefit interest costs
– Expected return on scheme assets
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6. Staff costs
The average weekly number of persons (including senior post-holders) employed
by the University during the period, expressed as full-time equivalents, was:
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Year ended
31 July 2014

Year ended
31 July 2013

Number

Number

Academic staff

1,580

1,467

Support staff

2,210

2,092

3,790

3,559

Year ended
31 July 2014

Year ended
31 July 2013

Staff costs for the above persons
Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs (Note 30)
FRS 17 current service cost (Note 30b)

£000

£000

138,837

128,135

9,722

9,327

16,866

15,755

5,638

4,658

FRS 17 employer contributions (Note 30b)

(5,015)

(4,057)

Total staff costs

166,048

153,818

Year ended
31 July 2014

Year ended
31 July 2013

£

£

45,617

271,783

Emoluments of the Vice-Chancellors
(a) Professor B Cantor was Vice-Chancellor until 30 Sept 2013
Salary
Benefits in kind

2,978

5,168

48,595

276,951

Year ended
31 July 2014

(b) Dr J Grenville was Acting Vice-Chancellor from 1 Oct 2013 to 31 Dec 2013
Salary
Employer’s pension contributions to USS which are paid at the same rate as for other employees

£
50,819
5,731
56,550
Year ended
31 July 2014

(c) Professor K Lamberts was Vice-Chancellor from 1 Jan 2014
Salary
Benefits in kind
Employer’s pension contributions to USS which are paid at the same rate as for other employees

£

£

131,475

-

1,489

-

21,036

-

154,000

-

Year ended
31 July 2014

Year ended
31 July 2013

Number

Number

£100,000–£109,999

14

16

£110,000–£119,999

9

9

£120,000–£129,999

5

4

£130,000–£139,999

4

1

£140,000–£149,999

2

1

£150,000–£159,999

1

-

Remuneration of other higher paid staff, excluding employer’s pension contributions,
employer’s national insurance contributions and compensation for loss of office:
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Notes to the accounts (continued)
7. Depreciation

Year ended
31 July 2014

Depreciation has been funded by
– Deferred capital grants (Note 20)
– University funds

8. Analysis of expenditure by activity

Staff costs

Depreciation

Operating
expenses

Interest
payable

Year ended
31 July 2013

£000

£000

8,977

8,758

12,218

11,470

21,195

20,228

Year ended
31 July 2014

Year ended
31 July 2013

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

Academic departments

90,118

3,452

26,972

-

120,542

112,911

Academic services

10,019

1,348

7,945

-

19,312

18,473

Research grants and contracts

24,510

636

11,111

-

36,257

32,844

Residences, catering and conferences7,552
Premises
Administration
Other expenses

776

20,155

-

28,483

27,708

7,215

12,829

14,545

-

34,589

32,011

19,928

49

14,638

-

34,615

36,097

6,706

2,105

8,686

5,929

23,426

19,672

Year ended 31 July 2014

166,048

21,195

104,052

5,929

297,224

279,716

Year ended 31 July 2013

153,818

20,228

99,629

6,041

279,716

Other operating expenditure includes:

Year ended
31 July 2014

Year ended
31 July 2013

£000

£000

External auditor’s remuneration for the audit of the University’s annual accounts

51

50

External auditor’s remuneration for the audit of the University’s subsidiaries’ annual accounts

28

31

External auditor’s remuneration for non-audit services

20

16

99

97

107

113

5

7

112

120

242

349

8,767

7,321

9,009

7,670

Year ended
31 July 2014

Year ended
31 July 2013

£000

£000

Internal auditor’s remuneration for internal audit services
Internal auditor’s remuneration for other services
Other operating leases and similar charges
– Equipment
– Property

9. Interest and other finance costs

Loans and interest rate swaps wholly repayable within five years
Loans and interest rate swaps not wholly repayable within five years
Other interest costs
Less interest capitalised on assets in the course of construction

630

334

5,475

5,811

12

8

6,117

6,153

(188)

(112)

5,929

6,041
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10. Taxation

(Decrease) in provision for deferred taxation (Note 19)
11. Tangible assets

Investment
freehold land
and buildings

Consolidated

Freehold land
Short leasehold
and buildings land and buildings
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Year ended
31 July 2014

Year ended
31 July 2013

£000

£000

(10)

(11)

Assets under
construction

Equipment

Heritage assets

Total

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

At 1 August 2013

6,119

401,560

21,226

8,519

110,487

880

548,791

Additions at cost

-

1,383

167

20,984

5,112

-

27,646

Assets completed during
the year

-

19,719

230

(20,014)

65

-

-

Cost/Valuation

Disposals at cost

-

(91)

-

-

-

-

(91)

6,119

422,571

21,623

9,489

115,664

880

576,346

At 1 August 2013

-

94,693

5,422

-

68,980

-

169,095

Charge for the year

-

13,838

196

-

7,161

-

21,195

Eliminated in respect of
disposals

-

(55)

-

-

-

-

(55)

At 31 July 2014

-

108,476

5,618

-

76,141

-

190,235

At 31 July 2014

6,119

314,095

16,005

9,489

39,523

880

386,111

At 1 August 2013

6,119

306,867

15,804

8,519

41,507

880

379,696

At 31 July 2014
Depreciation

Net book value

The narrative below applies to both the Consolidated and University tangible assets.
The aggregate amount of interest capitalised included in the cost of tangible fixed assets amounts to £8.1m (2013 £7.9m).
The assets held under finance leases have a net book value of £0.8m at 31 July 2014 (2013 £0.8m).
The depreciation charge on finance-leased assets is £32,000. The profit on disposal arises from the sale of a property in Heslington.
All assets are held at cost with the exception of investment property and heritage assets which are held at valuation. Freehold investment
properties were valued by Surveyors Jones Lang LaSalle at 31 March 2012. The reduction in the valuations is expected to be temporary and
is reflected in the revaluation reserve. Heritage assets comprising works of art and library acquisitions were valued at 31 July 2008 using
the existing specialist knowledge within the University departments. The Council is not aware of any material change in the valuation and
therefore the valuation has not been updated. The net book value of heritage assets is:
2014

Heritage assets net book value

2013

2012

2011

£000

£000

£000

£000

880

880

880

880
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Notes to the accounts (continued)
11. Tangible assets (continued)

Freehold land
and buildings

Short leasehold
land and buildings

Assets under
construction

Equipment

Heritage assets

Total

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

At 1 August 2013

402,135

10,248

8,021

83,807

880

505,091

Additions at cost

1,406

167

16,638

4,724

-

22,935

16,895

230

(17,125)

-

-

-

420,436

10,645

7,534

88,531

880

528,026

At 1 August 2013

94,651

4,679

-

64,420

-

163,750

Charge for the year

13,433

196

-

5,511

-

19,140

108,084

4,875

-

69,931

-

182,890

At 31 July 2014

312,352

5,770

7,534

18,600

880

345,136

At 1 August 2013

307,484

5,569

8,021

19,387

880

341,341

University
Cost/Valuation

Assets completed during the year
At 31 July 2014
Depreciation

At 31 July 2014
Net book value

12. Investments

Shares and similar investments (Note 12a)

Consolidated
2014

2013

2014

2013

£000

£000

£000

£000

1,551

1,545

1,551

1,545

-

-

23,043

23,043

Investments in subsidiaries (Note 12b)
Other investments (Note 12c)

University

96

93

88

93

1,647

1,638

24,682

24,681

Consolidated
2014

(a) Shares and similar investments
At 1 August 2013
Disposals
Increase in valuation (Note 24b)
At 31 July 2014

University
2013

2014

2013

£000

£000

£000

£000

1,545

1,419

1,545

1,419

(50)

(4)

(50)

(4)

56

130

56

130

1,551

1,545

1,551

1,545

The historical cost of these investments at 31 July 2014 was £1.0m (31 July 2013 £1.0m).
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Consolidated

33

University

2014

2013

2014

2013

£000

£000

£000

£000

At 1 August 2013

-

-

23,043

7,548

Additions

-

-

-

15,495

At 31 July 2014

-

-

23,043

23,043

(b) Investments in subsidiaries

The following undertakings are subsidiaries:
Name of undertaking
Amaethon Ltd

Percentage
holding of
ordinary shares

60*

Nature of business
Commercialisation of intellectual property

Heslington Studios Ltd

100*

Provision of film and television production facilities

NYCH Ltd

100*

Provision of training and conference services within the health sector

Perryquest Ltd

100*

Supply of medical equipment and consumables to the University

The Biorenewables Development Centre Ltd

100*

Development of biorefinery technology

YNI Ltd

100*

Commercial exploitation of MRI and MEG scanning equipment

York Conferences Ltd

100*

Provision of vacation conference and retail activities

York EMC Services (2007) Ltd

100*

Testing and consultancy in electromagnetic compatibility

York Health Economics Consortium Ltd

100*

Consultancy and research to health districts and hospital trusts

York Science Park Ltd

90*

Letting of accommodation to science-based start-up companies

York Sports Village LLP

100*

Provision of sports facilities

York University Development Company Ltd
(formerly Nemesian Ltd)

100*

Operation of sports facilities and supply of leasehold premises to the University

York University Energy Company Ltd
(formerly Bardmilne Ltd)

100*

Supply of utilities to the University, its subsidiaries and third parties

York University Property Company Ltd
(formerly York Science Park
(Innovation Centre) Ltd)

100*

Development of land and letting of office accommodation

All companies are incorporated in the United Kingdom.
* Shares or equivalent held directly by the University of York
Consolidated
2014

(c) Other investments
At 1 August 2013
Additions/(disposals)
At 31 July 2014

University
2013

2014

2013

£000

£000

£000

£000

1,007

1,982

1,007

1,982

3

(975)

(5)

(975)

1,010

1,007

1,002

1,007

914

909

914

909

-

5

-

5

914

914

914

914

Provision for impairment
At 1 August 2013
Increase in provision
At 31 July 2014
Net book value
At 31 July 2014

96

93

88

93

At 1 August 2013

93

1,073

93

1,073
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Notes to the accounts (continued)
13. Investment in joint ventures

Consolidated
2014

2013

2014

2013

Shares of net assets/cost

£000

£000

£000

£000

9,120

11,121

12,416

10,596

-

2,599

-

2,599

(752)

(4,246)

(1,504)

-

(1,000)

(779)

-

(779)
-

At 1 August 2013
New investment at cost
Change in investment holding
Distribution of profits from joint ventures to the University
Share of property revaluation

University

550

(587)

-

Share of operating profit

1,196

1,012

-

-

At 31 July 2014

9,114

9,120

10,912

12,416

40,774

30,230

3,682

3,515

The share of net equity of joint ventures:
Share of fixed assets
Share of current assets

44,456

33,745

Share of creditors under one year

(1,961)

(1,813)

Share of creditors over one year

(33,381)

(22,812)

9,114

9,120

Share of revaluation reserve

2,065

1,515

Share of net equity

7,049

7,605

9,114

9,120

- residence catering and conferences

4,189

3,373

- other activities

2,835

4,687

7,024

8,060

1,196

1,012

Share of joint venture turnover

Share of joint venture profits

During the year the University's share of capital of Student Accommodation Three LLP was reduced by £0.8m.
The University continues to hold 50% of the entity.
The following undertakings are joint ventures:
Name of undertaking

Percentage
holding of
ordinary shares

Nature of business

Myscience.Co Ltd

25*

Operation of National Science Learning Centre

Student Accommodation Provision LLP

50*

Provision of student accommodation

Student Accommodation Provision Two LLP

50*

Provision of student accommodation

Student Accommodation Provision Three LLP

50*

Provision of student accommodation

The Centre for Low Carbon Futures

20*

Promotion of research into low carbon innovations

Viopoint Ltd

50*

Development of the Science Park with P&O Development Ltd

WUN Foundation Ltd

17*

Promotion, development and distribution of direct learning

YHMAN Ltd

13*

Procurement, operation and management of a metropolitan area network

N8 Ltd

13*

Provision of education and research

All organisations are incorporated in the United Kingdom.
* Shares or equivalent held directly by the University of York
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14. Endowment assets
Consolidated and University

Shares and
and similar
investments

Property

Cash

35

Total

£000

£000

£000

£000

4,480

1,200

2,092

7,772

New endowments (Note 21)

50

-

1,044

1,094

Net expenditure (Note 21)

-

-

(1,112)

(1,112)

Decrease in cash balances

10

-

(10)

-

663

-

-

663

5,203

1,200

2,014

8,417

At 1 August 2013

Increase in value of endowment assets (Note 21)
At 31 July 2014

Historical cost of shares and similar investments held at 31 July 2014 was £6.7m (2013 £6.7m).
The property investment was valued by Property Valuers Jones Lang LaSalle on 31 March 2012 at £1.2m on an open market basis.

15. Debtors

Consolidated
2014

2013

2014

2013

Amounts falling due over one year

£000

£000

£000

£000

4,603

4,619

4,603

4,619

Prepayments

University

Amounts falling due within one year
Trade debtors

8,900

8,924

7,838

8,138

Amounts due on research grants

8,436

10,039

8,436

10,039

12,628

11,929

11,303

10,361

-

-

12,529

10,718

34,567

35,511

44,709

43,875

2013

2014

Prepayments and accrued income
Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings

16. Investments and short-term deposits

Consolidated
2014

University
2013

£000

£000

£000

£000

Short-term deposits

22,669

25,313

22,669

23,415

Less amounts allocated to endowments (Note 14)

(2,014)

(2,092)

(2,014)

(2,092)

20,655

23,221

20,655

21,323

2014

2013

2014

2013

£000

£000

£000

£000

Loans and finance leases (Note 18)

3,496

2,700

3,496

2,700

Trade creditors

8,827

6,841

8,215

6,160

27,970

31,032

24,297

26,424

17. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Accruals and deferred income
Capital creditors
Research grants payments received on account
Social security and other taxation payable
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings
Receipts administered on behalf of third parties

Consolidated

University

3,753

4,826

2,506

4,248

19,742

18,079

19,742

18,079

3,863

3,869

4,103

3,863

-

-

696

1,006

1,057

1,372

1,057

1,372

68,708

68,719

64,112

63,852

36
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Notes to the accounts (continued)
18. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Consolidated
2014

Between one and two years
Between two and five years
In five years or more

University
2013

2013

£000

£000

£000

£000

4,141

4,071

4,141

4,071

13,569

13,486

13,569

13,486

128,364

131,713

128,364

131,713

146,074

149,270

146,074

149,270

Consolidated

Unsecured

2014

University

2014

2013

2014

2013

£000

£000

£000

£000

Bayerische Landesbank

3,972

4,213

3,972

4,213

Royal Bank of Scotland

30,857

31,857

30,857

31,857

2,000

2,000

2,000

2,000

44,348

45,000

44,348

45,000

2,240

2,715

2,240

2,715

HEFCE
European Investment Bank
Salix
Other borrowings
Loan notes
Amounts repayable within one year (Note 17)
Capitalisation of costs of loan note issue

627

674

627

674

66,000

66,000

66,000

66,000

150,044

152,459

150,044

152,459

(3,496)

(2,700)

(3,496)

(2,700)

(474)

(489)

(474)

(489)

146,074

149,270

146,074

149,270

The Bayerische Landesbank loan is a fixed rate amortising term loan, maturing 2 March 2020.
The Royal Bank of Scotland loan is a variable rate loan. The majority of the loan (£24m) is amortising and repayable by 2029, while the balance
(£7m) is due in December 2029.
The HEFCE loan is interest-free and repayable in two instalments by August 2017.
The European Investment Bank loan is a 25-year variable rate amortising loan, with capital repayments starting in August 2013.
The Salix loan is interest-free and repayable in instalments over five years.
The Loan notes mature on 7 February 2047 and have coupon rates of 5.14% (£40m) and 5.16% (£26m) respectively.
Associated costs of £579,000 have been capitalised and are depreciated over a period of 40 years.
The University held interest rate swaps for the purpose of managing the exposure to changes in interest rates. The fair value of the liability for these
swaps, which has not been accounted for in the main financial statements, at 31 July 2014 was a liability of £7,041,000 (2013 liability £8,446,000).
The University does not hold any derivatives for trading purposes.

19. Provisions for liabilities

Consolidated

University

2014

2013

2014

2013

Deferred taxation

£000

£000

£000

£000

At 1 August 2013

98

109

-

-

(10)

(11)

-

-

88

98

-

-

(Decrease) in provision
At 31 July 2014

Annual Report and Financial Statements | 2014

20. Deferred capital grants
Consolidated

37

Funding Council

Other grants and
benefactions

Total

£000

£000

£000

54,782

55,519

110,301

At 1 August 2013
Buildings
Equipment
Total

6,115

7,502

13,617

60,897

63,021

123,918

3,878

1,444

5,322

-

2,255

2,255

3,878

3,699

7,577

Cash receivable
Buildings
Equipment
Total
Reclassification
-

-

-

Equipment

Buildings

172

(172)

-

Total

172

(172)

-

Buildings (Notes 1, 4)

(2,597)

(2,421)

(5,018)

Equipment (Notes 1, 3, 4)

(1,913)

(2,046)

(3,959)

Total (Note 7)

(4,510)

(4,467)

(8,977)

56,063

54,542

110,605

Released to income and expenditure account

At 31 July 2014
Buildings
Equipment
Total

University

4,374

7,539

11,913

60,437

62,081

122,518

Funding Council

Other grants and
benefactions

Total

£000

£000

£000

54,782

50,932

105,714

5,453

4,391

9,844

60,235

55,323

115,558

3,878

1,037

4,915

At 1 August 2013
Buildings
Equipment
Total
Cash receivable
Buildings
Equipment

-

2,255

2,255

3,878

3,292

7,170

Buildings

(2,597)

(2,122)

(4,719)

Equipment

(1,894)

(1,357)

(3,251)

Total

(4,491)

(3,479)

(7,970)

56,063

49,847

105,910

3,559

5,289

8,848

59,622

55,136

114,758

Total
Released to income and expenditure account

At 31 July 2014
Buildings
Equipment
Total

38
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Notes to the accounts (continued)
21. Endowments
Consolidated and University

Permanent
unrestricted

Expendable
restricted

Permanent
restricted

Total

£000

£000

£000

£000

734

1,982

4,114

6,830

-

20

922

942

734

2,002

5,036

7,772

-

1,044

50

1,094

20

531

112

663

At 1 August 2013
Capital
Accumulated income
New endowments (Note 14)
Increase in value of share investments (Note 14)
Income for the year (Note 5)
Expenditure for the year
Net (expenditure)/income for the year
At 31 July 2014

40

4

305

349

(40)

(1,231)

(190)

(1,461)

-

(1,227)

115

(1,112)

754

2,350

5,313

8,417

754

2,328

4,276

7,358

-

22

1,037

1,059

754

2,350

5,313

8,417

Consolidated

University

Represented by:
Capital
Accumulated income

22. Income and expenditure account

At 1 August 2013
Surplus retained for the year

2014

2014

£000

£000

110,237

115,043

10,474

8,087

Pension deficit (Note 23)

(1,088)

(1,088)

At 31 July 2014

119,623

122,042

Consolidated

University

2014

2014

23. Pension reserve

£000

£000

At 1 August 2013

(1,469)

(1,469)

Actuarial loss (Note 30b)

(5,595)

(5,595)

Surplus retained within reserves (Note 22)
At 31 July 2014

1,088

1,088

(5,976)

(5,976)

The pension reserve arises from the implementation of FRS 17 on University of York Pension Fund. The full details of the accounting are set out
in Note 30b.
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24. Revaluation reserve

Investment property (Note 24a)
Shares and similar investments (Note 24b)
Joint venture property (Note 24c)

Consolidated

University

2014

2013

2014

2013

£000

£000

£000

£000

(3,440)

(3,440)

-

-

200

144

200

144

2,065

1,515

-

-

(1,175)

(1,781)

200

144

2014

2013

2014

2013

Consolidated

(a) Investment property
At 1 August 2013
Decrease in valuation
At 31 July 2014

University

£000

£000

£000

£000

(3,440)

-

-

-

-

(3,440)

-

-

(3,440)

(3,440)

-

-

Consolidated

(b) Shares and similar investments
At 1 August 2013
Increase in valuation (Note 12a)
At 31 July 2014

University

2014

2013

2014

2013

£000

£000

£000

£000

144

14

144

14

56

130

56

130

200

144

200

144

Consolidated

(c) Joint venture property
At 1 August 2013
Increase/(Decrease) in valuation (Note 13)
At 31 July 2014

39

University

2014

2013

2014

2013

£000

£000

£000

£000

1,515

2,102

-

-

550

(587)

-

-

2,065

1,515

-

-

During the year the joint venture, Student Accommodation Two LLP, has revalued its properties.
25. Minority interest

Consolidated
2014

2013

£000

£000

At 1 August 2013

413

428

Income and expenditure movement

(2)

(15)

At 31 July 2014

411

413

40
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Notes to the accounts (continued)
26. Reconciliation of consolidated operating surplus to net cash inflow from operating activities

Surplus after depreciation of assets at cost and before tax

Year ended
31 July 2014

Year ended
31 July 2013

£000

£000

8,154

6,925

Depreciation (Note 11)

21,195

20,228

Deferred capital grants released to income (Note 20)

(8,977)

(8,758)

Endowments and investment income (Note 5)

(3,145)

(1,819)

5,929

6,041

(52)

(57)

(Increase) in debtors

(194)

(1,957)

Increase in creditors

3,481

4,304

Interest payable (Note 9)
(Increase) in stocks

(Decrease) in provisions
Profit on disposal of tangible fixed assets

(10)

-

(211)

(4,831)

Decrease in value of joint venture holding (Note 13)

752

-

Pensions cost less contributions payable (Note 6)

623

601

27,545

20,677

Year ended
31 July 2014

Year ended
31 July 2013

£000

£000

Net cash inflow from operating activities
27. Returns on investments and servicing of finance

Income from endowments (Note 5)

349

302

1,058

1,599

Interest paid

(6,128)

(6,157)

Net cash flow from returns on investments and servicing of finance

(4,721)

(4,256)

Year ended
31 July 2014

Year ended
31 July 2013

Receipts from short-term investments

28. Capital expenditure and financial investment

Fixed assets acquired
Fixed assets investments disposal
Receipts from sales of tangible fixed assets
Receipts from joint ventures
Endowment asset additions – shares (Note 14)
Deferred capital grants received
Endowments received (Note 21)
Amounts administered on behalf of third parties
Net cash flow from capital expenditure and financial investment
29. Financing

Loans acquired

£000

£000

(28,531)

(28,289)

46

1,169

247

4,657

1,000

779

(60)

(4)

6,940

8,412

1,094

1,347

(1,391)

(3,494)

(20,655)

(15,423)

Year ended
31 July 2014

Year ended
31 July 2013

£000

£000

300

2,715

Loan capital repayments

(2,700)

(1,209)

Net cash flow from financing

(2,400)

1,506
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30. Pension schemes
The University operates two defined benefit pension schemes: the University of York Pension Fund (UoYPF) and the Universities Superannuation
Scheme (USS). In addition, the University has introduced a defined contribution scheme (The People's Pension) and contributes to the NHS pension
scheme for some members of Hull York Medical School.

The total pension cost for the University and its subsidiaries was:
Contributions to USS
Contributions to UoYPF
Contribution to NHS pensions
Contributions to other schemes
Total pension cost (Note 6)
FRS 17 current service cost (Note 6)
FRS 17 employer contributions (Note 6)

Year ended
31 July 2014

Year ended
31 July 2013

£000

£000

12,862

12,644

3,868

2,956

91

155

45

-

16,866

15,755

5,638

4,658

(5,015)

(4,057)

17,489

16,356

(a) Universities Superannuation Scheme (USS)
The University participates in the Universities Superannuation Scheme, a defined benefit scheme which is contracted out of the State Second
Pension (S2P). The assets of the scheme are held in a separate fund administered by the trustee, Universities Superannuation Scheme Limited.
The appointment of directors to the board of the trustee is determined by the trustee company’s Articles of Association. Four of the directors are
appointed by Universities UK; three are appointed by the University and College Union, of whom at least one must be a USS pensioner member;
and a minimum of three and a maximum of five are independent directors appointed by the board. Under the scheme trust deed and rules,
the employer contribution rate is determined by the trustee, acting on actuarial advice.
The latest triennial actuarial valuation of the scheme was at 31 March 2011. This was the second valuation for USS under the scheme-specific
funding regime introduced by the Pensions Act 2004, which requires schemes to adopt a statutory funding objective, which is to have sufficient
and appropriate assets to cover their technical provisions.
At the valuation date, the value of the assets of the scheme was £32,433.5 million and the value of the scheme’s technical provisions was
£35,343.7 million, indicating a shortfall of £2,910.2 million. The assets therefore were sufficient to cover 92% of the benefits which had accrued
to members after allowing for expected future increases in earnings.
As a consequence of this valuation, the trustee determined, after consultation with the employers, a recovery plan to pay off the shortfall by
31 March 2021. In 2011 the actuary estimated that if experience remained in line with the assumptions made, the shortfall at 31 March 2014
would be £2.2 billion, equivalent to a funding level of 95%.
However, changes in market conditions between March 2011 and March 2014 have had an impact on scheme funding. The next formal triennial
actuarial valuation is taking place as at 31 March 2014, and work is currently under way to update the actuarial assumptions and allow for any
adjustments to the overall funding approach adopted by the trustee board in consultation with stakeholders. As work on the 2014 valuation is not
yet complete, the trustee cannot provide the final figure; however, an estimate has been provided using the assumptions used to deliver the 2011
actuarial valuation, allowing for investment returns and changes to market conditions. On that basis the actuary has estimated that the funding
level under the scheme-specific funding regime will have fallen from 92% at 31 March 2011 to 85% at March 2014.
The funding level has decreased mainly due to a decrease in real gilt yields, reducing the implied net discount rate and therefore placing a higher
value on the scheme’s liabilities. This increase has been partially offset by a higher than expected investment return.
On the FRS 17 basis, using an AA bond discount rate of 4.5% per annum based on spot yields, the actuary estimates that the funding level at
31 March 2014 was 75%. An estimate of the funding level measured on a historic gilts basis at that date was approximately 61%. Surpluses or
deficits which arise at future valuations may impact on the University's future contribution commitment. A deficit may require additional funding
in the form of higher contribution requirements, where a surplus could, perhaps, be used to similarly reduce contribution requirements.
The contribution rate payable by the University during the year was 16% of pensionable salaries.
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Notes to the accounts (continued)
30. Pension schemes (continued)
(b) University of York Pension Fund (UoYPF)
The University participates in the University of York Pension Fund, a defined benefit scheme which is contracted out of the State Second Pension
(S2P). The assets of the scheme are held in a separate fund, The University of York Pension Trust. The Trust's board of directors has nine members,
one of whom is independent. Four members are nominated by the University of York and the remainder are nominated by members.
The University contributes a rate of between 10% and 15% of pensionable salary to the scheme.
A full actuarial valuation was carried out as at 31 July 2011 by a qualified independent actuary. The fund has been assessed according to FRS 17
rules, and the results have been incorporated into these accounts.

Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at 1 August 2013

Year ended
31 July 2014

Year ended
31 July 2013

£000

£000

124,831

112,255

Current service cost

5,638

4,658

Interest costs

5,836

5,073

Scheme participants' contributions
Actuarial losses

258

223

6,031

6,729

Benefits paid from scheme

(4,167)

(4,107)

Benefit obligation at 31 July 2014

138,427

124,831

Year ended
31 July 2014

Year ended
31 July 2013

Change in scheme assets
Fair value of scheme assets at 1 August 2013
Expected return on scheme assets
Actuarial gains
Employer contributions
Member contributions

£000

£000

123,362

102,548

7,547

5,586

436

15,055

5,015

4,057

258

223

Benefits paid from scheme

(4,167)

(4,107)

Fair value of scheme assets at 31 July 2014

132,451

123,362

Year ended
31 July 2014

Year ended
31 July 2013

Amounts recognised in the balance sheet
Present value of wholly or part funded obligations
Fair value of plan assets
Net liability

Amounts charged to operating surplus
Current service cost
Expected return on scheme assets

£000

£000

138,427

124,831

(132,451)

(123,362)

5,976

1,469

Year ended
31 July 2014

Year ended
31 July 2013

£000

£000

5,638

4,658

(7,547)

(5,586)

Interest on pension liabilities

5,836

5,073

Fair value of scheme assets at 31 July 2014

3,927

4,145
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Year ended
31 July 2014

Amounts charged to statement of total recognised gains and losses

43

Year ended
31 July 2013

£000

£000

Actuarial loss/(gain) immediately recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses (Note 23 )

5,595

(8,326)

Cumulative amount of actuarial losses/(gains) recognised

3,207

(2,388)

Year ended
31 July 2014

Year ended
31 July 2013

%

%

Discount rate

4.2

4.6

Rate of compensation increase

4.1

4.2

Rate of price inflation

2.3

2.5

Rate of increase of pensions

2.3

2.5

Year ended
31 July 2014

Year ended
31 July 2013

Principal actuarial assumptions to determine benefit obligations

Principal actuarial assumptions to determine net pension cost
Discount rate

%

%

4.6

4.5

Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets

6.1

5.4

Rate of compensation increase

4.2

3.8

Rate of price inflation

2.5

2.0

Rate of increase of pensions

2.5

2.0

Year ended
31 July 2014

Year ended
31 July 2013

Principal actuarial assumptions on life expectancy

Years

Years

Male member age 65 (current life expectancy)

21.4

21.6

Male member age 40 (life expectancy at age 65)

23.7

23.8

Year ended
31 July 2014

Year ended
31 July 2013

Percentage of scheme assets

%

%

Equity securities

78.7

81.7

Bond securities

15.6

14.5

Other

5.7

3.8

100.0

100.0

Year ended
31 July 2014

Year ended
31 July 2013

%

%

Equity securities

6.3

6.6

Bond securities

3.9

3.9

Other

3.3

3.6

Combined

5.8

6.1

Total

Expected return on scheme assets

To develop the expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption, the University considered the current level of the expected returns on
low risk investments and the long-term expected return on high risk assets with reference to the portfolio of its investments. The expected return
for each asset class was then weighted based on the actual allocation to develop the expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption.
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Notes to the accounts (continued)
30. Pension schemes (continued)

Year ended
31 July 2014

Balance sheet reconciliation
Net liability at 1 August 2013

Year ended
31 July 2013

£000

£000

1,469

9,707

Pension expense recognised in the income and expenditure account (Note 6)

3,927

4,145

Amounts recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses

5,595

(8,326)

(5,015)

(4,057)

5,976

1,469

Year ended
31 July 2014

Year ended
31 July 2013

Actual contributions by the University (Note 6)
Net liability at 31 July 2014

Future contributions
Contributions expected to be paid to the scheme during the year starting 1 August 2014
2014

History of experience gains and losses

2013

£000

£000

4,906

5,003

2012

2011

2010

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

Defined benefit obligation

138,427

124,831

112,255

112,157

103,350

Fair value of scheme assets

132,451

123,362

102,548

100,461

87,667

Deficit

5,976

1,469

9,707

11,696

15,683

Difference between expected and actual return on
scheme assets

(436)

(15,055)

5,012

(7,077)

(7,266)

0%

-12%

5%

-7%

-8%

-

-

(9,141)

-

(1,800)

0%

0%

-8%

0%

-2%

% of scheme assets
Experience of gains and losses on scheme liabilities
% of scheme liabilities

(c) NHS Pension scheme
The University of York participates in the NHS Pension Scheme which is contracted out of the State Second Pension (S2P). The notional assets of
the scheme are assessed by the Government Actuary and the benefits are underwritten by the Government. There are no underlying assets. It is
not possible to identify each institution's share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the scheme and hence contributions to the scheme are
accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The cost recognised within the income and expenditure account is therefore equal to
the contributions payable to the scheme for the year.
The contributions payable by the University during the year ended 31 July 2014 are at a rate of 14% of the total pensionable salaries,
in accordance with the conclusion of the Government Actuary's report on the scheme.
(d) Other pension scheme
The University of York has established a defined contribution scheme as the main auto-enrolment vehicle for staff.
The investment of scheme contributions is managed by The People's Pension.
The contributions payable by the University during the year ended 31 July 2014 are at a rate of 1% of pensionable salary.
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31. Capital commitments

Consolidated
2014

Commitments contracted at 31 July
Authorised but not contracted at 31 July

32. Lease obligations
Operating lease commitments on leases expiring:

45

University
2013

2014

2013

£000

£000

£000

£000

3,825

24,214

2,510

23,147

25,866

9,446

22,587

8,821

29,691

33,660

25,097

31,968

2014

2013

2014

2013

£000

£000

£000

£000

25

64

6

39

217

285

208

185

8,441

7,321

8,441

7,321

8,683

7,670

8,655

7,545

Consolidated

University

Equipment leases expiring
– Within one year
– Between two and five years
Property leases expiring
– Over five years

33. Contingent liabilities/assets
There are no contingent liabilities. The University has submitted a VAT and climate change levy claim to HMRC. If the claim is successful then the
University will receive about £1.5m net.

34. Access funds and training bursaries

Unspent balance as at 1 August 2013
Grants received
Disbursed to students
Unspent balance as at 31 July 2014

Access funds

Training bursaries

2014

2013

2014

2013

£000

£000

£000

£000

23

14

78

48

185

168

1,414

1,314

(145)

(159)

(1,433)

(1,284)

63

23

59

78

Grants received from HEFCE and the National College for Teaching and Leadership are available solely for students; the University acts as paying
agents. The related grants and disbursements are therefore excluded from the income and expenditure account. The amounts unspent are
included in Note 17.
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Notes to the accounts (continued)
35. Related party transactions
The University is a corporate body established by Charter and receives a large proportion of its funding from the Higher Education Funding Council
for England. A register of interests is maintained for members of Council (the University’s governing body) and senior management, and no
related party transactions of a material nature were reported during the year. The University has taken advantage of the exemptions of Financial
Reporting Standard 8, Related Party Disclosures, and has therefore not disclosed transactions with its subsidiaries, which have been eliminated
on consolidation. The University’s transactions during the year with its associate and joint venture companies and non-wholly owned
subsidiaries were:

Myscience.Co Ltd
YHMAN Ltd
WUN Foundation Ltd

Charged by the University

Charged to the University

Year ended
31 July 2014

Year ended
31 July 2013

Year ended
31 July 2014

Year ended
31 July 2013

Year ended
31 July 2014

Debtor at 31 July
Year ended
31 July 2013

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

4,214

4,675

206

117

106

177

14

28

18

18

-

-

-

-

48

42

-

-

685

325

709

314

289

395

9

3

-

-

17

-

Student Accommodation LLP

564

858

3,331

-

152

34

Student Accommodation Two
LLP

798

589

3,718

-

236

29

-

-

-

-

-

-

11

2

40

40

-

-

York Science Park Ltd
Amaethon Ltd

Student Accommodation Three
LLP
N8 Ltd

Amounts charged by the University were for grants received, staffing and other services provided.
Amounts charged to the University were in respect of rents, subscriptions, education fees, grants and contributions to collective expenditure.
All the above services have been provided on normal commercial terms, or on the basis of a simple recharge of direct costs incurred.

The University provides the following student bodies with free office accommodation in addition to awarding grants of:
Year ended
31 July 2014

Year ended
31 July 2013

£000

£000

University of York Students' Union

937

929

University of York Graduate Students' Association

173

169

36. Council members
The University has reimbursed £680 travel expenses to two members of Council. These payments have been made to enable these people to
perform their Council duties.
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Consolidated five year results
Year ended
31 July 2014

Income
Funding Council grants
Tuition fees and education contracts

Year ended
31 July 2013

Year ended
31 July 2012

Year ended
31 July 2011

Year ended
31 July 2010

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

48,817

57,148

63,199

66,903

64,128

132,235

107,962

85,354

79,630

71,406

Research grants and contracts

55,124

49,824

46,426

51,242

57,429

Other operating income

72,870

73,117

65,341

59,721

53,029

211

4,831

1,405

2,686

-

3,145

1,819

1,487

739

287

Profit on disposal of fixed assets
Endowment income and interest receivable
Less share of income from joint ventures

(7,024)

(8,060)

(6,411)

(5,629)

(3,399)

Total income

305,378

286,641

256,801

255,292

242,880

166,048

153,818

142,654

139,867

138,424

21,195

20,228

20,504

17,753

14,993

104,052

99,629

83,959

87,588

80,176

5,929

6,041

5,551

4,538

3,442

297,224

279,716

252,668

249,746

237,035

Expenditure
Staff costs
Depreciation
Other operating expenses
Interest payable
Total expenditure
Surplus after depreciation and before taxation
Retained surplus for the year

8,154

6,925

4,133

5,546

5,845

10,474

8,695

5,786

7,882

7,537

396,872

390,454

385,900

356,334

338,970

8,417

7,772

7,169

10,644

8,159

Assets and liabilities
Fixed assets
Endowment assets
Net current (liabilities)
Long-term liabilities and provisions

(9,333)

(8,299)

(12,911)

(16,401)

(23,132)

(146,162)

(149,368)

(148,975)

(120,634)

(106,743)

Pension (liability)

(5,976)

(1,469)

(9,707)

(11,696)

(15,683)

Net assets

243,818

239,090

221,476

218,247

201,571

3,790

3,559

3,323

3,320

3,216

12,513

12,309

12,272

11,578

10,773

Average number of staff (FTE)
Average number of students (FTE)
– Home/EU
– Overseas

2,817

2,683

2,503

2,395

2,050

Capital expenditure

27,646

27,657

55,839

51,731

100,536

Net cash inflow from operating activities

27,545

20,677

17,286

22,070

16,985

This page has not been audited by the external auditors.
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The final celebration to mark the University’s 50th Anniversary was a spectacular
firework display over the lake on Heslington West in November 2013

Photography:
BAFTA/Jonathan Birch, John Houlihan,
Ian Martindale, Ran, Ziyang Yuan
Design: balldesignconsultancy.com

Planting at Heslington East is flourishing thanks to the University’s Grounds Maintenance team, led by Gordon Eastham
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